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INEOS UK E&P Holdings Limited
Annual Report and Financial Statements
for.the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Stratégic report

The directors present their strategic report on INEOS UK E&P Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
consolidated subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Business Review

The Group has interests in a number of licences for the exploration, development and production of oil-and gas in
various fields in the North Sea (“the Flelds”)

On 25 March 2021, the Group’s subsidiary, INEOS E&P Norge A/S, entered into an agreement to divest its oil
and gas business in Norway to PGNiG Upstream Norway AS. The transaction was completed on 30 September
2021. The disposal balanced the:Group’s portfolio of oil and gas production and moves the Group towards a
more operated position. The total consideration received was £159.0 million net of £0.7 million disposal costs
resulting in a gain on disposal of £149.2 million, refer to note 4 of the consolidated financial statement for details.

" The comparative financial information for the year ended 31 December 2020 has ‘been reclassified where

appropriate to present the results of this discontinued operatlon separately. Refer to note 4 to the consohdated
financial statements for details. .

-On 30 July 2021, the Group purchased 25 million'.shares in HydrogenOne Capital Growth plc (“HGEN™), as part
of the Group’s effort to reshape its energy business towards a carbon free future. HGEN is an investment fund
"dedicated to clean hydrogen and energy storage for the energy transition.

‘On 30 August 2021 the Group acqulred Hess Denmark ApS (now “INEOS Energy (Syde Ame) ApS”) for total

consideration of £100.0 million. The acquisition comprises 61.5% of the HESS operated Syd Arne oil field (which
the Group already held 36.8% prior to the acquisition) and 4.8% interest in the Solsort field which the Group holds
the operatorship. The acquisition unlocked operational and cost synergies between the Group’s existing Danish
assets and opened up prospects in Denmark’s offshore oil and gas sector. Refer to note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements for details.

The Group reported a profit from continuing operations for the year of £271.6 million in 2021 (2020: reclassified-
loss of £256.5 million) as a result of higher average realised oil and gas prices (91.0p per therm and $72/bbl
compared to 25.2p per therm and $39/bbl in 2020), reversal of impairments against oil and gas properties of £65.9
million (2020: £66.1 million impairment charge) and lower unsuccessful exploration and evaluation activities of
£4.1 million (2020: £14.7 million) partially offset by net derivative losses of £565.5 million (2020: net gain of
£65.5 million). Revenue from continuing operations increased by £347.7 million from £167.3 nijllion in 2020 to
£515.0 million in 2021. Revenue by category is set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Asat 3l December 2021, the Group had net llabllltles of £154.4 mnlllon (2020: net liabilities of £601.8 mllllon)

Production, operations and development updale

UK

Operational perfomianc_e has been steady in the year with reliability of 97.6% (2020: 97.0%) on our operated
fields. Sales averaged 16 kboe of oil and gas per day (2020: 17 kboe per day) with approximately 97% of the
production realised by-the following three key areas (2020: 89%): 31% from the operated Breagh field (2020:

21%), 20% from the operated Clipper South field (2020: 25%) and 46% from the non operated Greater Laggan
. Area (“GLA”) (2020: 43%).

There were no licenses awarded in the year (2020: one) and three licenses were relmqunshed or withdrawn (2020:
nine).

Breagh Field

Breagh is a joint venture between the Group (Operator, 70%) and ONE-Dyas UK Limited (30%). The field is
located in the UK Southern North Sea and at the time of its development was one of the largest natural gas
developments in the UK Continental Shelf. The Breagh field came on stream in October 2013.

In 2021, final investment decision was taken on two capital projects: (i) the Onshore Compression Project, which
will be located at the Teesside Gas Processing Plant (TGPP); and (ii) the drilling of an additional (extended reach)
well from the Breagh Platform (“A11”). Onshore Compression is expected on stream in the second half of 2023.
Drilling was completed and the well was brought on-stream'in December 2021.
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Strategic report (continued)

*Clipper South Field

Clipper South is a joint venture between the Group (Operator 75%) and Spmt Energy Southern North Sea Limited -
(25%). The field is located in the Sole Pit Basin in the UK Southern North Sea. In 2020, an investment decision
was taken to move Clipper South to low pressure operating mode in 2021 to further optimise and support
¢ontinued production from the asset into late field life. This project was completed on schedule and below budget
in August 2021, since when production rates have increased.

Greater Laggan Area

" The Greater Laggan Area (“GLA”) comprises the Laggan, Tormore, Edradour and Glenlivet licenses and is a joint
venture between the Group (20%), Total Energies (Operator, 60%) and RockRose Energy (20%). The GLA fields
are located 125km north-west of the Shetland. Production commenced from the Laggan and Tormore fields in

. early 2016 and- in 2017 the Edradour and Glenllvet fields were completed and also tied back via existing

infrastructure.

Operational performance over the course of the year was gocd with an operational efﬁciency of 92% achieved
-(2020: 97%). The planned repairs to the electrical distribution system were successfully completed in the second
. half of 2021 ahead of schedule and below budget.

A final investment decision on the development of the Glendronach field via a subsea tie-back-to Edradour is
targeted for Q4 2022. Evaluation offuture GLA development opportunities, including potentlal infill drlllmg, will
-be continued in 2022.

Cessatton of praductlon and decommissioning

Decommissioning activity in the UK continues on the Anglia, Minke, Markham Orca, Victor, Topaz, Cavendish,
"Windermere, Saturn, Tethys and Mimas fields with well plugging & abandonment and facilities removal activities
.planned to continue up-to 2026. K

Exploration drilling

No e'xploration or appraisal wells were drilled in 2021.

Development of drilling

The planned Breagh A11 well was drilled and completed in the second half of 2021. The target reservoir was
successfully drilled as planned and the overall project delivered under budget. Production came on stream in
December 2021 and production benefits are expected from 2022 onwards.

Denmark
Production, operations and development update

Operational performance continued to be strong in the year with reliability 0f94.3% (2020 91.6%) on our existing
operated fields. Sales averaged .10 kboe of oil and gas per day (2020: 6 kboe per day) with approximately 79%
from the operated Syd Arne field based on the new ownership share (2020 59%) and 21% from the operated
fields Siri, le and Cecilie (2020: 41%).

Siri Field

The Siri Area comprises the Siri field, where the processing platform and associated wells are located along with
satellite tie-back fields Stine, Nini, Nini East and Cecilie. Oil is exported by tanker and gas and produced water
reinjected into the Siri field. The Siri license, comprising Siri and Stine is 100% owned and operated by the Group
whereas the Nini (Nini and Nini East) and Cecilie licenses are joint ventures between the Group (Operator, 57.1%
and 56.4% respectively) and Wintershall Dea International AG. Production from Sm commenced in 1999 with
the satellite developments followmg in the next decade.
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Siri Field (continued)

.Operational performance over the course of the year was good, despite the changes to normal working routines
-introduced in 2020 in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, which continued in 2021. A short Siri Plant shutdown
was undertaken in February 2021 to conduct required platform maintenance, which was postponed from 2020 due"
to COVID-19. In June 2021 the main annual turnaround was executed with the main focus on maintenance and
repair of the generator turbine. In order to get back on'track with major inspection tasks, a short and planned Siri
shutdown was also executed in November 2021 .

The next turnarounds are scheduled to be undertaken in June and November 2022. Replacement of the main
generator is planned.as part of the June turnaround. ’

Syd Arne Field

The Syd Arne field is a joint venture between the Group (98.3%) and Danoil (1.7%). Production from the field
commenced in 1999. ,

On 30 August 2021, the Group acquired Hess Denmark ApS (now “INEOS Energy (Syde Ame) ApS™). The
acquisition comprises 61.5% of the HESS operated Syd Arne oil field (which the Group already held 36.8% prior
to the acquisition) and 4.8% interest in the Solsort field which the Group holds the operatorship. Following the
acquisition, the Group became operator of the ﬁeld Refer to note 3 of the consolidated financial statements for
further details.

Operational restrictions in connection with the COVID-19 pandemic as well as prioritising a safe take-over of the’
Syd Arne operatorship affected the execution of the 2021 well intervention plan, which was partly delayed until
towards the second half of 2022. Facilities projects were affected to a lesser degree - the next turnaround, planned
and executed by the Group as the new Syd Ame operator is scheduled to be undertaken in 2022. [n late 2021, a
commercial agreement was entered into with the Solsort Unit owners concerning terms and conditions for a tie-
back of the nearby Solsort Oil discovery (The Solsort West Lobe) to the Syd Arne facilities for processing and
export. The Syd Ame hcense and the Solsort Unit partnershlp are now jointly maturing the facility and drilling

. scope.

Lulita Field

The Lulita field is a joint venture between Total (Operator, 15.6%), the Group (40%), Shell (18.4%), Noreco
(10%), Nordsofonden (10%) and Chevron (6%). Production comprises a single well drilled from the Harald
platform. The well liquids are processed on Harald and oil and gas are exported separately to the Tyra complex
for onwards distribution. The Lulita license expires in 2026. Production is currently shut in and expected to restart
in the third quarter of 2023 following a redevelopment of the Tyra area, which has been delayed by more than a
year due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Hejre Field

The Hejre area comprised of licenses 5/98 (100% owned by the Group) and 1/06 between the Group (80%) and
NSF (State participation) (20%). Development and exploration activities takes place in license 5/98 whilst only
exploration activities takes place in license 1/06.

The ongoing Hejre development project is in the concept selection phase with focus on maturing a tie-back to a
suitable host. Following the acquisition of Hess Denmark ApS, work in 2021 has been focused on establishing
technical feasibility and commercial- attractiveness of taking produced Hejre liquids back to Syd Ame for
“processing and export. Further maturation work began in late 2021 and will continue throughout 2022.

The Group is subject to a contingent consideration should a Final Investment Decision be made on Hejre and
* Solsort discoveries-with notice issued to the regulator. The contingent liability has not been recognised because it
is contingent on future events which are considered remote. Refer to note 29 of the consolldated financial
statements for further details.
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Denmark (contihued)
Solsort Field

The Solsort license is a joint venture between the Group (67 6%), NSF (State partncnpanon) (18.4%) and Danml ‘
(14%).

The Solsort development project compnses the firm and contmgent phases. The firm phase, being the West Lobe

" - development, was further matured in 2021 and consists of two wells drilled from the Syd Arne North Satellite

platform with minor modifications to the Syd Arne facilities. Following internal and partner endorsement, the
project entered into a Front End Engineering Design (“FEED”) phase in late 2021 with further facility and well
design'and procurement efforts taking place. Final investment decision, pending a successful FEED phase-and an
attractive business.case, is expected in 2022. '

Greensand Project

The Greensand Carbon Capture Storage (“CCS”) prOJect is a consortium formed to develop a plan to safely and
permanently store, in a cost effective manner, up to.8 million tonnes of CO2 per annum, in the Siri area, after the
fields have ceased production.

The Nini West reservoir was further matured for CO2 storage with Phase Léompleted successfully in mid-2021.

In September 202t,.an application'for Danish state funding was made to support Phase 2 of the project, Pilot CO2 .

injection in the Nini West reservoir. In December 2021, funding for Phase 2 was awarded and. the-consortium
confirmed the work programme, with 3-month long injection tnal planned to take place in late 2022 through to
eaIIy 2023.

Cessation of produc'tiorg and decommissioning
No material decommiésioning was undertakeﬁ during 2021.
Other operational updates ‘
Licence Awards
There were no licence awards during 2021. _
Disposal;, relinquishments and surrender of licences

"The Group surrendered the following licences during the year: -

L Fuﬁ relinquishment of the P2405 (Ballechin) Licence (UK)

‘*  Full relinquishment of the P2405.(Ballechin North) Lic.:ence (UK)
. Wit‘hdrawal from the P2411 (Benriach) Licence (UK)

Dr;y holes qnd write-offs

Write-offs booked against Ballechin (£2.6 million) and Benriach (£1.5 million) in the year due to license
relinquishment. . .
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Impairment reversals

The significant increase in realised gas price from an average of 25.2p per therm in 2020 to 91.0p per therm in
'2021, together with reasonable expectation of continuation into the near future, is seen as an impairment reversal
trigger, and the Group has performed impairment assessments on all of its oil ‘and gas assets. As a result an
impairment reversal of £79.4 million, the maximum available, was recognised against the Group’s UK assets
(2020: nil) and an impairment charge of £13.4 million was recognised against the Group’s Danish assets (2020:
" £66.1 million charge against the Group s UK and Danish assets). Refer to note 12 for details.

Key performance indicators

The performance of the. Group is measured on the basis of both financial and non-financial measures. Non-
financial measures include health, safety and environmental factors such as Occupational Safety and Health
Administration (“OSHA™) recordable incidents, reliability of operated facilities and management of licence
interests. There have been no changes in non-financial measures used and the Group met its target on these
measures in both 2020 and 2021.. ' .

The main financial measure used by management is Normalised Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and
Amortisation (“Normalised EBITDA from continuing operations™), which excludes expenses such as impairment
* charges/reversals, unsuccessful exploration and ‘evaluation activities, and gains or losses on disposal. Normalised
EBITDA is a Non-GAAP measure, a reconciliation to the GAAP measure is presented below. Normalised
EBITDA from continuing operations for 2021 was £492.0 million (2020: £40.5 million). The increase largely
reflects the significant rise in oil and gas prices and higher production in the year. Reported profit from continuifig
operations for the year was £271.6 million (2020: loss of £256.5 million).

Details of actual and comparative EBITDA/Normalised EBITDA from continuing operations are provided below:

2021 2020*

£'000 ' £'000

Operating loss - (150,482) : ' (123,775)

Depreciation for the year ’ 139,098 ‘ 140,991

" Amortisation for the year ’ ‘ . 291 389

EBITDA ' (11,093) 17,605
Exceptional items _ ’ (555) 4077
Unsuccessful exploration and evaluation activities . 4,072 S ‘l4',2 19 .

* Impairment loss on fixed assets ' . . - 13,442 . 66,077

Impairment reversal on fixed assets ' o (79,376) ’ -

Gain on derivative financial instruments . (54,612) ) " (71,538)

Loss on derivative financial instruments : 620,153 6,033

Impairment loss on goodwill . . - ‘ 3,957

Gain on disposal o ) . ‘ - h 34

A Normalised EBITDA from continuing operations . ’ 492,031 : 40,464

*The comparative financial information for 2020 reflects the reclassifications required to disclose discontinued
operations separately; and to show gains and losses on commodity derivative financial instruments within other
operating income / expenses rather than finance income / expense, with resulting changes to the statement of
cash flows (see note 2.25 and note 4).
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Safety, Health and Environment (“SHE”)

In addition to the application of Group’s internal SHE management systems, the Group has mamtamed ISO 14001
and OHSAS 18001 certifications. One OSHA recordable incident was reported in the year (2020: 1).

Future outlook

As part of its response to energy transition, the Group has continued to mature Project Greensand in Denmark.
The finalisation of the feasibility study was followed in December 2021 by.Danish State funding of €26 million
(£21.8 million) for the pilot project. The Group, being the operator of the pilot project, together with a strong
corsortium of 23 partners, will prepare and conduct a physical CO?2 test of the storage potential towards the end
of 2022 and into 2023. If successful, Project Greensand would be commercialised from 2025 and store up to 4 to
8 million tonnes ofCOZ per annum over time.

Furthermore, the Group has strengthened its equity oil and gas position with the increased ownership and
operatorship of the Syd Arne platform in Denmark. Control of Syd Arne has opened up opportunities for continued
growth in Denmark, with nearby opportunities such as Solsort and Hejre, and could be a key contrlbutor to the
security of supply of energy to the European Union. : '

In the UK, the Group has continued to develop the Breagh field via the A11 well and the ongoing compression
project which, over time, will increase the delivery of gas into the UK market. Oil and gas prices increased in
. 2021 driven by post pandemic i increases in demand. The trend continued in 2022 following the military action in
Ukraine. Given recént sanctions imposed on Russia, the short to medium term outlook for oil and prices is positive
although higher volatility is to be expected.

Although impossible to predict the extent and duration of the above factors, the directors have undertaken a
rigorous assessment of the potential impact on worldwide oil and gas demand and the effect on margins for at
least 12 months from the date of signing these financial statements. In conclusion, the stress testing and sensitivity
analyses on both EBITDA and cash flow have mdlcated that the Group would have sufficient cash flow.to meet
all of its obligations as they fall due

The directors constantly review strategy amid a volatile commodity price environment and will continue to pursue
growth opportunities through further developments in Denmark and the UK.

The Group looks forward to the coming years with optimism in deveIOpmg near term resources in a safe, relrable
and profitable manner. ‘

Section 172 statement

.In governing the Company on behalf of its shareholders and discharging their duties under section 172, the board
has had regard to the factors set out in section 172 (see below) and other factors which the board considers
appropriate. Section 172 requires directors to have regard to the following in performing their duties, and as part
of the process are required to consider, where relevant:

The likely long-term consequences of the decision.

The interests of the Company’s employees.

The need to foster the Company’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others.
The impact of the Company’s operations on the community and the environment.

The desire to maintain the Company’s reputation for high standards of business conduct.

The need to act fairly between members of the Company.

me a0 oe

The directors have the duty to promote the success of the Company and the Group for the benefit of stakeholders
as a whole and remain conscious of the .impact their decisions have on employees, communities, suppliers,
customers, investors and the environment. The directors focus on engagement with all stakeholders, and consider
stakeholders’ views when making decisions. .
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Section 172 statement (continued)
The likely consequences of any decision in the long term

The Group’s key sirategic pillars are centred on the long-term cash and operational planning for the capital
requirements needed to grow the portfolio through both organic and inorganic means. To achieve these objectives,
the Group has the following key strategies:

e Maintain a conservative financial profile through _capital discipline and strong liquidity;

» Focus the business on assets that the Group operates and maintain a balanced portfolio between oil and
gas; ' '

* Maximise cash flow from the existing asset base by applying operational and commercxal expemse,
‘whilst improving reliability and HSE performance;

e Obtain licences and pursue targeted development opportunities; and

e Pursue value accretive mergers and acquisitions where the Group sees opportunmes to improve the
operation of oil and gas assets that have become uneconomic in the hands of their existing owners.

Value accretive mergers and acquisitions where the Group sees opportunities to improve the operation of oil and

gas assets that have become uneconomic in the hands of their existing owners. The directors believe these are
critical long-term strategies for the future success of the Group and the directors’ decision-making has supported

its implementation. The Group plans for strateglc investments to support its goals and continually investigates

potentlal growth opportunities.

Stakeholder considerations
" Engaging stakeholders and developing meaningful partnerships is essential for iéng-term,busines\svsuccess.

The Group respects the rights, values and dignity of all employees, customers, contractors, vendors and other
stakeholders. The Group aims to build enduring relationships with governments, customers, partners suppliers
and communities in the countries where the Group operates .

The Group is committed to maintaining a workplace that is safe, professional and supportive of teamwork and .
trust. The Group is committed to creating and sustaining a work environment of rutual trust where all employees
are treated with respect and dignity, compensated fairly based on local market conditions, and are entitled to
adequate working hours. The Group value the diversity of its people and each of its employees is recognised as
an important member of our team.. :

The Group is committed to protecting and maintaining the quality of the environment and to promoting the
health and safety of its employees, contractors, suppliers, customers, visitors and the communities in which it
operates. Compliance with all legislation intended to protect people, property and the environment is one of the
Group’s fundamental priorities and applies to our products as well as to our processes. Managemerit lead by
example and allocate the required resources to achieve excellence in SHE performance.

The need to act fairly as between members of the Company.

The Company has a single shareholder. and a single ultimate controlling party Their mterests are taken into
account by the dlrectors to promote falrness in decision makmg
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Section 172 statement (continued)

Principal decisions

Pri’ncfpalh decisions taken by the board is deﬁned_as decisions taken in 2021 that are of a strategic natﬁre and
significant to any of the Group’s key stakeholder groups. :

i

iii)

Acquiéition of HESS Denmark ApS (note 3)

During the year, the Group acquired HESS Denmark ApS from HESS (Netherlands) Holding B.v.
The acquisition covers ownership in the oil and gas llcense Syd Ame (61. 52% interest) and Solsort
(4.8% interest). . '

Given the sngmf’ icance of the acquisition, the directors had ‘multiple stakeholder engagements
involving shareholders, employees and lenders of the reserves based lending (“RBL”) Facility.
These engagements included an update and discussion on: the scale, strategic importance and timing
of the acquisition; impact on the Group’s structure and resources; and the implications to the Group’s
stakeholders. Townhalls, business meetings were arranged to discuss the above topics.

The directors considered: changes to be made to current process to drive operating and financial
synergy; ways to meet shareholders’ expectations and those from both the Group’s and acquirees’
employees. The decision was made to strengthen the Group’s Danish oil and gas portfolio, unlock
operational and cost synergies across the Group’s Danish assets and supports the development of
the Greensand carbon storage project.

Sale of Norwegian oil and gas business (note 4).

During the year, the Group completed the sale of its oil and gas business in Norway to PGNiG
Upstream Norway AS. The sale included all of the Group’s interests in productlon licenises, fields,
facnlltles and pipelines on the Norwegian continental shelf.

Given the significance of the acquisition, the directors had muitlple stakeholder engagements
involving shareholders, employees and lenders of the RBL Facility. These engagemeénts included an
update and discussion on: the scale, strategic importance and timing of the sale; impact on the
Group’s structure and resources; and the implications to the Group’s stakeholders. Townhalls,
business meetings were arranged to discuss the above topics.

The directors considered: changes to be made to current process to drive operating and financial -
synergy; ways to.meet shareholders’ expectations and expectations from both the Group’s and the
affected employees. The decision was made to rebalance the Group’s overall oil and gas portfolio,
moves the Group towards a more operated position and opens up new opportunities to reinvest
further into the energy transition.

Breagh co‘mpresﬁion projectand Al well

In 2021, a final investment decision was taken on two capital projects: (i) the Onshore Compression

" Project, which will be located at the Teesside Gas Processing Plant (TGPP); and (ii) the drilling of

the A11 well from the Breagh Platform. The directors engaged with the Breagh Joint Venture Partner
who was fully supportive of progressing both capital projects. In addition, it was necessary. to seek
consent from the Oil & Gas Authority (now the North Sea Transition Authority) for additional
drilling, who were fully supportive and approved the necessary Field Development Plan Addendum.
Drilling commenced on the A11 well in Q3 2021 and was brought on-stream in December 2021.
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Principal risks and uncertaintieé

Production and reserves access

Production from the Group’s fields relies on efficient and reliable operations and the successful development of
future opportunities. Unsuccessful exploration activity, increasing technical challenges and capital commitments
may adversely affect the Group’s reserve replacement objectives. The Group also faces numerous challenges
including uncertain geology, availability of technology and engineering capacity, availability of skilled resources,

- maintaining project schedules and managing costs. Such potential obstacles may impair the Group's operational
performance and financial position. The Group mitigates these risks by applying best practice to its operations
and actively manage non-technical risks across a portfolio of opportunities and projects.

" Health, safety, environment and security (HSES)

These risks include major process safety incidents, failure to comply with approved policies, effects of natural
disasters, social unrest and terrorism. The consequences of such risks materialising can be. injury, loss of life, .
environmental harm and disruption to business activities. Depending on their cause and severity, they can affect
the Group's reputation, operational performance and financial position. The Group has an effective and
comprehensive HSES management system to mitigate this risk and support safe and secure execution of all critical
activities.

Joint Operations and contractors

Oil and gas operations are typically conducted via joint ventures and a number of fields or projects are operated
by the Group’s partners. The Group’s ability to influence and control the performance of those operations may be
limited. Non-alignment on various strategic decisions in joint ventures may result in operational or production
inefficiencies or delay. The Group mitigates this risk by continuous and regular engagement of its partners and
contractors in non-operated fields or projects.

Climate change and the transition to low carbon economy

The Group recognises the scientific consensus on climate change and is committed to reduce its own emissions
and, as part of the wider Oil and Gas industry, w111 continue to play a vital role in dellvermg low-carbon solutions.

As part of its commitment to energy transition, the Group has continued to invest in Project Greensand. The.
project plans to safely and in a cost effective manner permanently store up to 8 million tonnes of CO2 per annum,
in the Siri area, when the fields have ceased production. The project is supported by the Danish state through the

" Energy Technology Development and Demonstration Program (EUDP) and is currently in the pilot phase. The
Group has also invested in HydrogenOne Capital Growth plc an investment fund dedicated to clean hydrogen
and energy storage for the energy transition :

" The Group acknowledges the global trend to move toward net zero carbon emissions. Dependmg on the nature
and speed of any such changes and the Group’s response, this could adversely affect: the Group’s financial
performance and competitiveness.

Cyber security

The Group is subject to cyber security risks. A cyber incident could result in mformatlon theft, data corruption,
operational disruption and/or financial loss. Cyber security imposes an increasing risk on companies. With the
growing volume and sophistication of cyber-attacks, the risk is that sensitive business and personal information
is not well protected and assets and the Group’s security are not safeguarded. The Group has resources dedicated
to mitigate the risk of a cyberattack and to recover as soon as possible from any attack that might occur.

Ethical misconduct and non-compliance

Ethical misconduct or breaches of applicable laws by the Group’s businesses or its employees could be damaging
to its-reputation, and .could result in litigation, regulatory action and penalties. The Group is committed to
operating in a responsible manner and to comply with all relevant local, national and international laws. To uphold
this commitment a Code of Conduct is in place that'defines and summarises what is expected of the business and
our people.



" -and mitigating measures are implemented where appropriate.

TNEOS UK E&P Holdings Limited
Annual Report and Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Strategic report (continued)
Principal risks and uncertainties (continued)

Regulation and geopolitical instability -

The Group operates in different countries and developments in politics, laws and regulations in those countries
could cause business disruption. These may in turn cause production to decline, limit the Group's ability to pursue
new opportunities, affect the value of its assets or cause it to incur additional costs. Political instability, changes
to the regulatory environment or taxation, international trade disputes, international sanctions, expropriation or
nationalisation of property, civil strife, strikes, insurrections, acts of terrorism, acts of war and public health
situations (including the ongoing military actions in Ukraine and continued impact of the COVID-19 pandemic
or a future epidemic or pandemic) may disrupt or curtail its operations or development activities. The Group
liaises with various industry bodies to understand and prepare for compliance with new regulations on a timely
and cost-effective basis. The Group is actively monitoring any factors and events that could cause adverse effects

Treasury and trading activities

The Group uses debt instruments, such as loans, to raise capital. Should access to debt markets become more
difficult, the potential impact on the Group’s liquidity could have a material adverse effect on its operations.
Ineffective oversight of treasury and trading activities could also lead to business dlsruptlon financial loss,
regulatory intervention or damage to the Group’s reputatlon :

-Reporting

Failure to accurately report the Group s data could lead to regulatory actlon legal llablllty and reputatlonal
damage .

Financial risk

The financial risk management process, which-the risk is considered asone of the principal risks and uncertainties
of the Group, is dlscussed iri the Directors’ report

The impact of the emergence and spread of Coronawrus (Co V[D 19)

The Group closely monitored the evolution of the COVID-19 outbreak throughout 2021, will continue to do so
going forward and is following the-World Health Organisation and local governments advice where required.
During 2021, the Group took measures where required to mitigate the risk to keep employees safe and the fields
operational, such as introducing social distancing measures on all premises and adopting COVID-19 testing
procedures. The Group has not expenenced any material adverse impact on its operation due to COVID-19.

Business relatlonshlps

The business relationships with suppliers and customers are of strz;tegic importance to the Directors of the Group .
and their decision-making process. The .business relatlonshlps of the Group are descnbed in the Section 172(c)
.statement in the Strategic Report.

Employee engagements

The Group uses various forms of communication to ensure all employees are fegularly updated on the Group
performance as well as wider company initiatives. The Group is committed to encouraging employees to suggest
ways in which working practices can be improved and how the Group can help to contribute to organisational
success. - - :

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

Q | W%M L~

Director - A ) : -
30 June 2022 :
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Directors’ report

The directors present their report and the audited consolidated and company financial statements of the Group and
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021. -

General information

INEOS UK E&P Holdings Limited is a private company limited by shares incorporated and domiciled in the UK.
The registered office is Brodies House, 31-33 Union Grove, Aberdeen, Scotland, AB10 6SD.

Principal activities

The prmCIpal activity of the Group durmg the year continued to be the exploration, development production and
transportation of oil and gas.

Results and dividends

- The results of the Group are set out in tﬁe consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 20 which
shows a profit for the financial year of £474.4 million (2020: loss of £226.2 million) which has been transferred
to reserves. The directors have not paid and do not recommend the payment of a divi'dend (2020: nil). '

Overseas branches )
The Group has no overseas branches (2020: nil).
Political donations ' A

No political donations were made or polltlcal expendlture incurred and no contributions were made to a non-EU
political party (2020: nil).

8

Energy and carbon reportmg

" Data in this section are reported on a 100% operational control basis in respect of activities where the Group is
.the operator within the UK and offshore area. :

Greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions déta are provided below in accordance with UK regulations. GHG emissions
comprise CO2, methane, nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons, sulphur hexafluoride and nitrogen
trifluoride. The data are calculated using locally regulated methods where they exnst

2020 **
2021
Total energy consumption used to calculate emissions in KwH ' 26,093,053 2,555,382
Emissions (tonnes of CO2 equivalent)

- Direct* S ' 5,532 646
Energy indirect ** : ‘ 0 0
Emissions from business travel in rental cars or employee-owned vehlcles i A :
where company is responsible for purchasing the fuel 0 13
Intensity ratio (tonne/tonne). )

Al facilities *** o : : 0010 0001

* Scopc lemissions from the combustion of fuel and the operatlon of facilities operated by the Group within the UK and offshore area.
*# Scope 2 emissions from the purchase of electricity, heat, steam and cooling for the Group’s own use. The Group has no scope 2 emissions

as the purchase of all electricity, heat, steam and cooling is done by a property management company outside of the Group. 2020 figures have
been restated to omit scope 2 emissions previously disclosed.

*** [n tonnes of total direct and energy indirect GHG emissions, expressed in metric tonnes of CO2 equivalent, emitted into the atmosphere
per metric tonne of oil and gas production available for sale.

- Business relationships '
Business relationships are discussed in the Strategic report.
Future developments '

Future developments are discussed in the Strategic report.
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Directors’ report (contmued)

Subsequent events

The Group is closely monitoring the evolving geopolitical situation in Europe. The effects on the global economy
and the energy industry is difficult to assess at this point in time; nevertheless the Group continues to monitor any
potential effects on production and operation. :

Directors

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of signing the financial statements were as follows:

Andrew Pizzey : ' .
David Bucknall (appointed 1 November 2021)

Douglas Scott ) (resigned 1 November 2021)
Mads Weng Gade o
Mark Hobbs (appointed 31 May 2022)

Michael Llewellyn

Going concern

“The Group has consrdered its fundmg posmon and financial projections up to June 2023, including. stress test
sensitivities, and the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. In arriving at this conclusion, the directors have
- considered the principal risks and uncertainties and financial risks that the business is exposed to, discussed in the :
Strategic Report on page 8 and 9 and below.

The Group monitors its funding position and its Ilquldlty risk throughout the year to ensure it has sufficient funds
to meet its forecast cash requirement. Cash forecasts are produced based on a number of inputs, such as production
and expenditure forecasts, oil and gas price assumptions, and investing and financing cash flows, which include
the impact of Danish acquisition and Norwegian disposal, as detailed in note 3 and 4 of the consolidated financial
statements. These inputs have’ been reviewed and approved by the board and sensitivities are applied for different
scenarios. Base case prices for gas were set at 94.0p per therm for 2022 and 2023, and oil prices were set at $71/bbl
in 2022 and $66/bbl in 2023. The most significant sensitivity scenario was low commodity prices resulting in an
average gas price of 85 per therm for the remainder of 2022 and 2023,and an average oil price of $64-/bbl for the
remainder of 2022 and $59 /bbl in 2023. .

Oil and gas prices rose significantly during the course of 2021 and with the potential loss of Russian oil and gas
supplies as a result of sanctions in place against Russia, prices have been elevated since the beginning of 2022.
Although the drrectors cannot predict the impact they have undertaken a rigorous assessment of the potentral
impact for 12 months from the date of signing of these financial statements. In conclusion, the stress testing and
sensitivity analysis on both EBITDA and cash flow has indicated that the Group would still have sufficient cash
flow to meet its obligations as they fall due based on available cash and undrawn availability on the reserves based
lending (“RBL”) facilities at 31 December 2021. :

The base assumptions indicate that the Group expects to be able to operate within its contractual debt facilities
and have sufficient finance headroom for at least 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements,
with RBL covenants fully complied throughout the forecast period. As such, the directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group and the Comipany has adequate resources to continue its operation in the foreseeable
future. Therefore, the directors consider that preparing the financial statements on the going-concern basis
continues to be approprrate

Financial risk management

The Group’s operations are exposed to a variety of financial risks that ihclude effects of commodity price risk,
credit risk, liquidity and cash flow risk, currency risk and interest rate risk. The Group has in place a risk
- management programme that seeks to limit any adverse effects on financial performance where appropnate
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Directors’ report (continued)

Financial risk managément (continued) .
The main financial risks, which could affect the G‘roup, a_re‘ set out below:

a) Price and market risk: Oil and gas are traded commodities with open market prices. They are subject to
international supply and demand and margins can be volatile. Political developments, increased supply
of oil and gas or alternative low carbon energy sources, technological change, global economic
conditions, public health situations (mcludmg the continued impact of the COVID-19 pandemic or any
future epldemlc or pandemic), inflation and the influence of OPEC can impact supply and demand and
prices. The Group is exposed to fluctuations in market prices to the extent that it has not entered into
fixed price agreements. The directors regularly review cost-benefit of entering into commodity price
hedges to minimise price risk. ‘

Generally, the Group policy is to remain exposed to market prices of commodities, however, -
management may elect to use derivatives instruments to hedge the price risk of oil and gas production.

The Group uses swaps and options in various markets to manage the risk to the Group’s cash flows from
. price exposures on specific crude oil and natural gas transactions. Refer to note 25 for details.

b) Interest rate risk: The Group has a mix of financing facilities including the Reserves Based Lending (or
“RBL") Facility and a shareholder loan facility. The RBL Facility bears interest at a margin above risk
free rates; the shareholder facility bears interest at a fixed rate of 7% pér annum. The directors review
the interest rate and assess the cost- benefit of interest rate hedging. Refer to note 18 for details.

¢) Currency risk: The Group undertakes transactions in various currencies and manages this risk by -
matching receipts and payments in the same currency (where possible) and monitoring the movements
in exchange rates. The shareholder loan is denommated in USD and the RBL facility allows drawing in
a number of currencies.

d) Credit risk: The Group has in place policies and pfocedures to mitigate the risk that customers orjoiht
venture partners default on amounts owed. Exposure to credit risk is mmlmlsed by the nature of the
customers and joint venture partners with which the Group deals.

e) Liquidity and cash flow risk: The Group seeks to ensure that its operating assets generate sufficient -
positive cash flows to cover the Group’s costs and development activities and service the Group’s own
obligations. The Group has access to liquidity, through the RBL facility and support from shareholders
to manage such risks. o

Disabled employees

The Group prohibits acts of discrimination whereby one individual is treated less favourably than another on
grounds of age, disability, gender reassignment, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation, marriage and civil
-partnership and pregnancy and maternity. The Group’s intention in respect of recruitment, selection and promotion
is to appoint the most able candidate for each job regardless of the characteristics listed above. Any internal and
external training opportunities including training towards professional qualifications are available to all employees
and all conditions of employment, employee benefits and services apply irrespective of age, disability, gender
reassignment, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation, marriage and civil partnership and pregnancy and
maternity.

Employee consultation

The Group places considerable value on the involvement of its employees and continues to keep them informed
and hear from them in relation to matters affecting them as employees and on the various factors affecting the
performance of the Group and the Company. This is achieved through both formal and informal consultation
methods, whilst complying with relevant legislation, if applicable. ' ‘
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Directors’ report (continued)

Reappointment of auditor

In accordance with section 485 of the Companies Act 2006, a resolution for the re-appointment of Deloitte LLP -
“as auditors of the company is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ report confirm that, so far as they are each -
aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditor is unaware; and each director has
taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself/herself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of that information.

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
- applicable law and regulation. -

Company law requires the directors to pfepa;re financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have prepared the Group financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom adopted international
accounting standards. The financial statements also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as issued by the [ASB. The directors have chosen to prepare the parent company financial statements in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicable law), including FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”. Under company law the
_ directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of

the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group and Company for that
period. In preparing the financial statements, the directors are required to:

» " select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
. make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

« ° state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed for the Group financial
statements and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101, have been followed for the
Company financial statements, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial _
statements; and

*  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is mappropnate to presume that the
Group and Company wnll continue in business.

In preparing the Group financial statements, International Accountmg Standard 1 requires that directors:
~*  properly select and apply accounting policies; '

+  present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, réliable, comparable
and understandable mformatlon

*  provide additional disclosures when comphance with the specific requirements in [FRSs are insufficient to
enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity’s
financial position and financial performance; and

* make an assessment of the Group and Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also
. responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for takmg reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and ﬁnancnal information included
on the Company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparatlon and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions. :

14



INEOS UK E&P Holdings Limited
Annual Report.and Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Directors’ report (continued)

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial statements (contlnued)

ln the case of each director in ofﬁce at the date the Directors’ Report is approved

* so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Group and Company’s
auditors are unaware; and : ‘

+ they have taken-all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the Group and Company s auditors are aware of that
information.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

\,Q (/(@(/\,Fé/&(u&\

Michael Llewellyn
Director
30 June 2022
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—

Independent auditor’s report to the members of INEOS UK E&P Holdings
Limited : - : ‘

-

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our.opinion:

e the financial statements of lNEOS UK E&P Holdmgs Limited (the ‘parent Corhpany’) and its subsidiaries
(the ‘Group’) give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the parent Company s affairs as at
31 December 2021 and of the Group’s profit for the year then ended; :

e the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United ngdom adopted

. international accounting standards and International Financial Repomng Standards (IFRSs) as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB);

e the parent Company fi financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Dlsclosure
Framework”; and

e the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements.of the Companies Act
2006. . ' ’

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income;

the consolidated and parent Company statement of financial positions;
the consolidated and parent Company statements of changes in equity;
the consolidated cash flow statement;

the statement of accounting polncnes,

the related consolidated notes 1 to 32; and

the related parent Company notes 1 to 23.

The financial reporting framework that has been- applied in the preparation of the group financial statements is
applicable law, United Kingdom adopted international accounting standards and IFRSs as issued by the IASB.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent Company financial
statements is applicabie law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard
101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion )
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. .

We are independent of the group and the parent Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statéments in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s (the
‘FRC’s’) Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. :

Conclusmns relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have. concluded that the Directors’ use of the ‘going concern basns of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is'appropriate.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of INEOS UK E&P Holdings
Limited (continued)

! ‘-
Conclusions relating to going concern (continued)

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group’s and parent Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements
are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities .and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

v Other information

The other information compnses the information included in the annual report other than the financial statements

and our auditor’s report thereon. The Directors are responsible for the other information contained within the
. annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the

extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial
staternents themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. :

4

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ responsibilities statement, the Directors are responsible for the

preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such

internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
" free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. '

" In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the parent
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the parent
Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. .

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

- Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements

. ~

A fuirther description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s website
at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of INEOS UK E&P Holdings
lelted (continued)

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities_, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting lrregularltles mcludmg fraud is
detailed below. .

We considered the nature of the Group’s industry and its control environment and business performance, key
drivers for management’s remuneration, and reviewed the Group’s documentation of their policies and procedures
relating to fraud and compliance with laws and regulations. We also enquired of management, Directors and legal
counsel about their own identiﬁcation and assessment of the risks of inegularities. ’

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework that the Group operates in, and identified
the key laws and regulations that: :
e had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
These included UK Companies Act, Health and Safety and tax legislation and the sector it operates in; and
s do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but compliance with which may be fundamental to
the Group’s ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty. These included the Group’s operatmg licence
-and envnronmental regulations.

We discussed among the audit engagement team including significant component audit teams and relevant internal
specialists such as tax, valuations, and IT regarding the opportunities and incentives that may exist w1thm the
organisation for fraud and how and where fraud mlght occur in the financial statements.

As a result of performing the above, we identified the greatest potential for fraud in the following areas, and our
specific procedures perfonned to address it are described below

. Signviﬁcant risk identified in respect of the classification of exceptional costs within the financial
statements. We have performed procedures in respect of the classification of costs identified as exceptional
and have considered the consistency year on year, with Group’s peers and for compliance the Group’s
accounting policy. .

In common with all audits under. [SAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to
the risk of management override. In addressing the-risk of fraud through management override of controls, we
tested the appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessed whether the judgements made in
making accountmg estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluated the business ratnonale of any
' 51gn|ﬁcant transactions that are uriusual or outsnde the normal course of business.:

In addmon to the above, our procedures to respond to the risks identified included the following:

e reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with
provisions of relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial statements;

e performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks
of material misstatement due to fraud; '

e enquiring of management and in-house legal counsel concerning actual and potential litigation and clalms
and instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations; and

e reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance reviewing correspondence with local tax
authorities, and the licensing authority / industry regulatory in the locations where the Group operates.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of INEOS UK E&P Holdmgs
Limited (continued)

Report on other legal and regulatory i'equirements

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006,

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
e the information given in the strategic report and the Directors’ report for the financial year for which the
* financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and :
e the strategic report and the Directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with appllcablc legal
requirements. :

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and of the parent Company and their environment
obtained in the course of the audlt we have not identified any material misstatements in the strateglc report or the
Directors’ report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of the followmg matters if, in our opinion:

e adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit
_have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

o the parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and-returns; or

e  certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

e we'have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act'2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members.
those matters we are required to staté to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s
‘members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

g “ ] ' . .‘ ,
GWlky,
Graham Hollis ACA (Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Statutory Auditor

Aberdeen, United Kingdom
30 June 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Jor year ended 31 December 2021 :

2021 2020*

Note £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Revenue - I 6 514,981 167,321
~ Cost of sales o ' (234,561) ‘ (340819) -
Gross profit/(loss) . 280,420 ) ’ (173,498)
Administrative expenses before exceptional (12,650 : (11,778)
_ items . ’ ’
Exceptional administrative gains/(expenses) - 8 555 4,077)
Total administrative expenses . - (12,095) (15,855)
Other operating(expense)/ income R 7 (418,807) : 65,578
Operating loss ' : T 7 (150,482) - (123,775)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets - : - (107)
Finance income . ‘ 0 - 73,88 5,816
Finance expense , 10 . (53817) . (116,963) ~
Net financing expense : o~ ‘ 20,069 . (111,254)
Loss before tax . ) (130,413) (235,029)
Taxation : 11 402,026 . (21,424)
Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing ] 27 I\613 . (256.453)
operations ~ ’ ’ : 5%
Discontinued operations
Gain on disposal of discontinu€d operations 4 149,240 . . -
Profit from discontinued operations 4 53,563 30,219
- Net profit from discontinued operations . 202,803 30,219
Profit/(loss) for the year , 474416 . . . (226,234)
Other comprehensive income/ (expense)
Items that may be subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss : .
Foreign exchange translation differences - . - 24 C : ) p
foreign operations . . . (31,889) . A 20,870
Net change in fair value of available-for-sale 24 4875 )
financial assets recycled to profit or loss ’ i
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for 447.402. . (205,364)

the year :

The notes on page 26 to page 88 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

*see note 2.25 and note 4.
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as at 31 December 2021
: 2021 2020
, Note / £000 . £'000
Non-current assets - :
Property, plant and equipment ] 12 . 592,954 749,045
Intangible assets : o 3 , 83,204 213,772
Right-of-use assets . . ' 26 ’ 40,837 26,932
Indemnification assets : ) . 5 ’ ' ’ 331,285 205,075
Prepayments 17 8,654 16,095 .
Investments : 14 . - 1,303
Financial assets at fairhvalue through other comprehensive 25 ) , ' 29,875 o
income o .
Derivative financial instruments - . 25 . . 7,474 -
Loan receivables E ) . 17 ) 181,103 171,626
Deferred tax aSsets ) 23 © 507,484 11,459
i o 1,782,870, 1,395,307
Current assets B
Inventories : 16 ; 19,156 " 17,840
Indemnification assets . . 15 3,401 17,681
Tax receivable o 17 122,397 31,535
" Derivative financial instruments ) 25 - 21,298
Trade and other réceivables - ' L7 - 170,450 102,600
Cash and cash equivalents ' 89,871 130,936
o ' : 405,275 321,890
Total assets C : . . 2,188,145 1,717,197
Current liabilities ) .
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings ) ' 18 - (1,758) (28,894)
Trade and other payables TN . . (79,748) . (103,354)
Tax payable . 19 . (166,788) (137,870)
Derivative financial instruments o 25 . : (401,087) (34,714)
Deferred consideration : 22 : (78,828) (26,479)
Lease liabilities 27 (1,018) (1,199)
" Provisions . . 21 : . (151,739) (56,959)
: ’ (880,966) (389,469)
Non-current liabilities
. Interest-bearing loans and borrowings . 18 : . (438,245) (619,866)
- Trade and other payables o 19 ) ) (9,565) (8,148)
Deferred consideration 22 - - - . (71,758)
Lease liabilities. ~ . 27 (40,944) (26,565)
_Provisions 21 : (971,569) (1,086,351)
Deferred tax liabilities o ' : 23 (1,295) (116,881)
. ’ ) . (1,461,618) (1,929,569)
Total liabilities ' ' : Coe (2,342,584) (2,319,038)
"Net liabilities . : ) . (154,439) (601,841)
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Share capital i . 24" - 74327 74,327 -
Share premium . 24 : oo 232,994 232,994
Other reserves ’ o 24 (835) 26,179
Retained losses . ' : (460,925) (935,341)
Total equity - . . Lo (154,439) - (601,841)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)
as at 31 December 2021 '

These financial statements from page 20 to page 88 were approved by the board of directors on.30 June 2022 and were signed
on its behalf by : oo _ .

\Q‘WW@MQV |

Director .
Company registered number: SC200459
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equlty

JSor year ended 31 December 2021

Balance at | January 2020
Total comprehensive income/
(expense) for the year

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

Transactions with owners,
recorded directly in equity

Issue of shares (note 24) .

Amounts arising on common
control disposal (note 4)

Baiance at 31 December 2020

Balance at | Janua}y 2021

Total comprehensive income/
(expense) for the year -

Profit for the year

Other comprehénsi\}e income/
(expense)

Balance at 31 December 2021

) . - .
INEOS UK E&P Holdings Limited

Annual Report and Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Foreign
Capital currency  Retained
Share Share redemption Other translation earnings/ . )
capital premium reserve  reserves reserve (losses)  Total equity
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 © ° £'000 £'000
74,327 173,683 22,546 - (17,237) (776, 106) (522,787)
. R - - - (226234) - (226,234)
: - - - 20,870 - 20,870
- 59,311, - - - - 59,311
- - - - - 66,999 . 66,999
74,327 232,994 22,546 - 3,633  (935,341) . (601,841) -
Foreign
: Capilal . currency Retained
~ Share Share redemption Other-  translation  earnings/ ~ Total
capital  premium reserve  reserves reserve (losses)  equity
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
74,327 232,994 22,546 - 3,633 (935,341) (601,841)
- - - o - 474416 474,416
- - - 4,875 (31,889) - (27,019)
74,327 232,994 22,546 4,875 i ‘(28,256) (460,925)  (154,439)

The notes on bage 26 to page 88 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Sor year ended 31 December 2021

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing operations
Adjustments for: .

Depreciation and amortisation

Finance income

Finance expense : )
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
Adjustment for changes in estimates (indemnification assets)
Unsuccessful exploration and evaluation activities
Exceptional items — non-cash items

Net loss/ (gain) on derivative financial instruments
Impairment loss on fixed assets

Impairment reversal on fixed assets

Impairment loss on goodwill

Taxation

(Increase)/ decrease in trade and other. receivables
Decrease/ (increase) in inventories - '
Decrease in trade and other payables
Decommissioning and other provisions

Tax paid

Net cash from operating activities — continued operations
Net cash from operating activities — discontinued
operations

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received

Disposal of discontinued operations, net of cash disposed of

Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired

Payment of deferred consideration

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Acquisition of exploration and evaluation assets .
Acquisition of other intangible assets

Acquisition of other financial assets

Net cash- used in investing -activities — continuing
operations :

Net cash used in investing activities — discontinued
operations

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from new loan .

Interest paid

Repayment of borrowings -

Principal elements of lease payments

Net cash (used)/ from in financing activities — continuing
operations »

Net cash used in financing activities — discontinued
operations :

-~

Note -

10
10
12

15

13

12
12
13

N W

INEOS UK E&P Holdings Limited -

. Annual Report and Financial Statements

for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020*
£'000 £'000
271,613 (256,453)
139,389 141,007
. (73,886) (5.816)
53,817 116,963

- 34
(146,734) .
4,072 - 14219
(10,400) -
565,541 (65,503)"
13,442 66,077
(79,376) -
- 3,957
(402,026) 21,424
(98.948) 168,120
7.536 ~(644)
(179,445) (34,987)
(70,177) (16,081)
7,256 (5.254)
1,674 147,061
246,144 101,951
247,818. 249,012
'8,388 5,391
158,975 17,848
(93.230) (22,904)
(25,956) - (30,311)
- (28,261) (5,245)
(94) (8.204)

- a7y
(25,000) -
(5,178) (43,596)
(30,485) (43,193)
(35,663) (86,789)
- 23,553
(10,305) (14,702)
(234,943) (100,110)
- (3.938%) (3.596)
(249,186) (94,855)
(3,933) (4,036)
(253,119) (98,891)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
JSor year ended 31 December 2021

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents . ' (40,965)

63,332
Cash and cash equivalents at | January . - . . 130,936 69.623
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held : (100) (2,019)
Cash and cash equivalentsat 31 December - . . ’ : 89,871 130,936

The notes on page 26 to page 88 are an integral part of these financial statements.

*see note 2.25 and note 4.
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Notes to the consolidated finahcial statements

1  Corporate information
INEOS UK E&P Holdings Limited is a private limited company incorporated and domiciled in the UK.

The principal activity of the Group is the exploration, development and production of oil and gas. Information on the
Group’s ultimate parent is presented in note 31. Informatlon on .other related party relationships of the Group is
provided in note 30.

2 Summary of significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates

The accounting pohcnes set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applled consistently to all penods presented
. in these Group ﬁnancnal statements.

2.1  Basis of preparation

The Group financial statements consolidate those of the Company and its subsidiaries. The Company financial
statements present information about the Company as a separate entity and not about its Group. N

Judgements made by the directors in the application of these accounting policies that have significant effect on the
financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment are discussed in note 2.24.

The Group financial statements have been prepared and approved by the-directors in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC) interpretations and in accordance with
the Companies Act 2006. The Company has elected to prepare its Company financial statements in accordance with
FRS 101; these are presented on page 88 to page 107. :

2.2 Measurement convention

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except that the following assets and liabilities are
stated at their fair value: derivative financial instruments, financial instruments classified as fair value through profit
or loss, financial assets classified as fair value through other comprehensive income and indemnification assets and
liabilities. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a llablhty in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are.not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 or
value in use in IAS 36.

23 Going concern

Based on the assessment described on page 12, which takes account of ongoing uncertainty as a result of COVID-19
and its impact on commodity prices, the directors have concluded that it is appropriate to prepare the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

24 Basis of consolidation
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. In assessing control, the Group takes into consideration potential voting rights that are currently exercisable.
The acquisition date is the date on which control is transferred to the acquirer. The financial statements of subsidiaries
are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non- controllmg interests
even if doing so causes the non-controlling interests to have a deficit balance. -
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates (continued)
24 Basis of consolidation ,(continued)
Change in subsidiary ownership and loss of control

Changes in the’ Group s interest in a subsidiary that do riot result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions.

Where the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and liabilities are.derecognised along with any related Non-
controlling interest (“NCI”) and other components of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value when control is lost.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has sngnlﬁcant influence but not control, general]y accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting,. :

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the income statement, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income, with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. Whére the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalfofthe associate.
Distributions received from an associate reduce the carrying amount of the investment. :

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any. objective evidence that the investment in the
associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value, and it recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of profit/
(loss) of associates’ in the income statement.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions,
are eliminated. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity-accounted investees are eliminated against.the
investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee: Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as
unreahsed gams but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Joint Arrangements

A joint arrangement is an arrangement over which the Group and one or more third parties have Jomt control. These
joint arrangements are in turn classified as:

e Joint ventures whereby the Group has rights to the net assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to its -
assets and obligations for its llabllmes and

e Joint operations whereby the Group has rights to the assets and obligations for the l|ab|I1t|cs relatmg to the
arrangement.

Interests in joint ventures (joint operation)

The Group’s interests in jointly controlled assets are accounted for by recognising its proportionate share in assets and
liabilities from joint ventures, except where as operator the Group takes on the role as independent contractor. In these
instances, receivables and payables relating to jointly controlled operations are brought to account on a gross basis.
Joint venture expenses and the Group’s entitlement to production are recognised on a pro rata ba51s according to.the
Group’s joint venture interest.

)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies and key accounting éstimates (continued) '
2.5 . Foreign currency transactions and balances

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in British pound sterling (£), which is also the Company’s
functional currency. For each entity, the Group determines the functional currency and items mcluded in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. :

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group entities at the foreign

exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies

at the period end date are retranslated to the functional currency at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. Non-

monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using-
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies

that are stated at fair value are retranslated to the functional currency at foreign.exchange rates ruling at the dates the

fair value was determined. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recogmsed in the statement of
comprehensive income.

All the amounts in the financial statements have been stated to the nearest £'000.”

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities

Classification

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, loans and
borrowmgs and trade and other payables.

Recognition and measurement
Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised |n1t1ally at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to
- the acquisition or issue. Subsequent to initial recognition they are tested for classification as per IFRS 9. If the trade
receivables satisfy the criteria for cash flow characteristics test and business model test as per IFRS 9, then they are
recognised at amortised cost. If they do not qualify for being recognised at amortised cost they are recognised at fair
. value through profit and loss.

Trade and other payables

Trade bayables are obligations to pay for products or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
" business from suppliers. Payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer).-1f not they are presented as amounts falling due after more than
one year. .

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value. The carrying amount of trade and other payables
generally approximates to fair value due to their short maturities. Where settlement is not due in the short-term and
where the effect is material, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less, but éxclude any restricted cash. Restricted cash is not
available for use by the- Group and therefore is not considered highly llqu1d it is disclosed within other receivables in
the statement of financial position. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management are mcluded as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose only of the
statement of cash flows.
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‘Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)'

2 Summary of significant accounting pOllCles and key accountlng estimates (continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (contmued)

Interest-bearing loans/bgrrowings .

Interest-bearing loans/borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method. They
are included in current assets/liabilities, except for maturities greater than 12 months -after the end of the reporting
" period, such as the bank loans the Group has in place. Refer to note 18 for details.

Derivatives and hedging

Derivative commodity financial instruments are recognised at fair value. The gain or loss on re-measurement to fair
value is recognised immediately in profit or loss as other operating income/(expense). A derivative with a positive fair
value is recognised as a financial asset whereas a derivative with a negative fair value is recognised as a financial
liability. Derivatives are not offset in the financial statements unless the Group has both a legally enforceable right
and intention to offset. .

- Financial assets available for sale

- For investments in equity securities not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes to fair value in other comprehensive income. The Group makes this election on an investment-by-investment
basis. When these investments are derecognised, thé cumulative gain or loss previously recognised dnrectly in equity
is recognised in the income statement. Please refer to note 25 for further details.

" Impairment of financial assets

The expected credit loss mode! is applied for recognition. and measurement of impairments in financial assets
measured at amortised cost. The Group applies the simplified approach when providing for. expected -credit losses
prescribed by IFRS 9 for its trade receivables and contract assets. This approach requires the Group to recognise the -
lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables taking in consideration historical as.well as forward looking
information. Financial assets which are considered low risk are not provided for impairment by the Group.

An impairment loss in respect of a receivable carried at-amortised cost is reversed if the subsequent increase in
recoverable.amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised.

2.7 " Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated. impairment
losses. Where parts of an item of tangible fixed assets have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate
items of tangible fixed assets

The carrying amount of tangible fixed assets is reviewed for impairments when events or changes in circumstances
- indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Where an indicator of impairment exists, the Group makes an
estimation of recoverable amount, which is the higher of the asset’s fair value less cost to sell and value in use. Where
the carrying amourit of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is 1mpa1red and written -down to its
recoverable amount. . :

Buildings, plant and equip}nent, furniture and equiprhent

Depreuatlon is charged on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of the tangible fixed assets.
Deprematlon commences from the date an asset is available or ready for use.. :
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued) -

2 Summary of significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates (continued)
2.7 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Oil and gas properties

Oil and gas properties are carried at cost, net of accumulated depletion and accumulated impairment losses. Depletion
and depreciation of the capitalised costs for producing oil and gas properties is provided by the unit-of-production
method based upon proved and probable recoverable.oil and gas reserves, where unit-of-production method is deemed
not approprlate straight line method is applied over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Assets are derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the contmued
use of the asset. :

"Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date. -

_Asset class ~ Depreciation m_ethod and rate
Buildings 4-6 years
Plant and equipment 4-20 years
Furniture and Equipment 3-20 years .
Oil and gas properties : Unit of Production

2.8 Intangible assets
Exploration and evaluation activities

The Group follows a successful efforts accounting policy for oil and gas assets. The success or failure of each
exploration- or appraisal effort,is assessed on a well-by-well basis. Exploration costs prior to obtaining the licence
interest are charged to the statement of comprehensive'income as they are mcurred .

'Exploration and evaluatlon expenditure associated with an exploration well, mcluding related exploration and
evaluation’activities, are initially capitalised as intangible assets. If the prospects are determined to.be successful on
completion of evaluation and the project is initially sanctioned by management, the relevant expenditure including
licence acquisition costs are capltahsed as oil and gas properties.

If the prospects are subsequently determined to be unsuccessful, and the asset is impaired, the associated costs are
. expensed in the period in which that determination is made.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets that are‘acquired by the Group are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. These intangible assets prlmanly represent software licence fees that are not an integral part of the
related hardware.

 Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, and it represents the excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired. If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and previously held interest measured at fair value is less than the fair value of the net

“assets of the subsidiary acquired, in the case of a bargain purchase, the dlfference is recognised directly in the statement
of comprehensnve income,
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2 Summary of significant accounting poli'c'ies and key accounting estimates (continued)
2.8 Intangible assets (continued)

Goodwill impairment testing is performed annually or if there is an indication of impairment. Goodwill impairments
tests are based on cash generating units and compare the recoverable amount of the unit with the respective carrying
amount. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The value in use is determined using a discounted cash flow method, considering earnings
forecasts of the unit. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated

“to each of the cash generating units (CGUs), or groups of CGUs that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the entity
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.

Amortisation .
Amortisation is charged ona stralght line basis over the estimated useful life from the date the asset is available to
use. Exploration and evaluation assets are not subject to amortisation.

Asset class ) : Amortisation method and rate

Soft&vare ‘ . ' : 3-5 years

Intangible assets are testeéd for lmpalrments at the end of the reporting period if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Useful lives are exammed on an annual basis and adjustments,
where appllcable, are made on prospective basis. '

2.9 . 'Business combinations

All busmess combmatlons are accounted for by applymg the acquisition method except acquisitions under common
control which are outside the scope of IFRS 3. Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method
as at the acquisition date, which is the date ot which control is transferred to the Group.

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as:
o . the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus
. . the recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; plus
* the fair value of the existing equity interest in the acquiree; léds
e the net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets ai:quired and liabilities assufned

"When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognlsed immediately in the statement of comprehenswe
income.

Costs related to the acquisition, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, are expensed as
incurred.

Any contingent consideration payable is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. If the contingent consideration
is classified as equity, it is not re-measured and settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognised in statement of comprehensive income.

On a transaction-by-transaction basis, the Group elects to measure non-controlling interests, which have both present
ownership interests and are entitled to a proportionate share of net assets of the acquiree in the event of liquidation,
either at its fair value or at its proportionate interest in the recognised amount of the identifiable net assets of the
" acquiree at the acqwsmon date. All other non- controllmg interests are measured at their fair value at the acquisition
date.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates (continued)
2.9 Business combinations (continued)
' Acqz)isitions undér common control

" Acquisitions under common control are accounted for at book value, using the assets and liabilities recorded in the
financial statements of the acquiree. The difference between the consideration pald and the net assets acquired is
recognised in retained earnings.

2.10  Inventories

Inventories consist of petroleum, condensate; liquid petroleum gas and materials. Inventories are valued at the lower
of cost and net realisable value, which is the estimated selling price less costs of completion and disposal. Cost is
determined using a weighted average of purchase prlces Provnsnon is made.for obsolete, slow-moving and defective
items where appropriate.

Long lead items and other special niaterial, which are only purchased for a particular property or approved project are
classified as property, plant and equipment. .

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
For intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives or that are not yet ava|]able for use, the recoverable amount is
estimated each year at the same time.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs

to dispose. In assessing fair value less costs to dispose, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present

value using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific

to the asset: For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested mdwndually are grouped together into

the smallest-group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely-independent of the cash
~inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit”).

An impairment loss is recognised if'the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its estimated-
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in statement of comprehensive income.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has
“decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no -
impairment loss had been recognised. 3y
Ari impairment charge of £13.4 million was recognised against Siri assets in Denmark and an impairment reversal of
£79.4 million was recognised against a number of assets in the UK for the year ended 31 -December 2021 as a result
of impairment review performed. Refer to note 12 for details.

2.12°  Employee benefits
Defined contribution pension obligation

The Group operates defined contribution retirement plans. A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit .
plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised
as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income in the periods during which services are rendered by
employees
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2 Suminary of significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates (co;ttinued)
2.12  Employee benefits (continued)
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service
is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short term cash bonus or profit sharing
plan if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to the pay the amount as a result of past service provided
'by the employee and the obligation can be measured reliably.

\

2.13 Provisions

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Group has a present legal or constructive .
obligation as a result of a past event, that can be reliably measiired and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash

. flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects risks specific to the llablllty

_ Dilapidation and Restoratlon

The Group makes full provision for the future restoration costs of leased properties on a discounted basis. The
restoration provision relates to the total costs of returning the property at the end of the lease to its original state. A
corresponding property, plant and equipment asset of an amount equivalent to the provision is also recognised. The
asset is depleted on a straight line basis. The unwinding of the discount in the net present value of the total expected
cost is treated as an interest expense. Changes in estimates are reflected prospecnvely over the remammg life of the

. lease.

Decommissioning and restoration -

" The Group makes full provision for the future costs of the decommissioning and restoration of oil and gas properties
on a discounted basis. The decommissioning and restoration provision relates to total cost of plugging and abandoning
-the existing wells and any costs associated with returning the sites to their original use. The amount recognised is the
estimated cost of decommissioning discounted to. its net present value, and is reassessed each year in accordance with
local conditions and requirements. A corresponding property, plant and equipment asset of an amount equivalent to
the provision is also recognised. The asset is depleted using the unit of production method. The unwinding of discount
in the net present'value of the total expected cost is treated as an interest expense. Changes in the estimates are reflected
prospectively over the remaining life.of the field. '

2.14 Leases

Definition

The Company has entered into a number of leases for real estate in England as well as plant & machinery.

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period

of time in exchange for consideration. The.Group assesses whether: '

. » The contract involves the use of an identified asset

«  The Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic beneﬁts from use of the asset throughout the
period of use; and

»  The Group has the right to direct the use of the asset.
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2.14  Leases (continued) . A : o L

Initial recognition and measurement

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group allocates the: consnderatlon
“in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative standalone prices.

The Group recognises the full lease liability, rather than its working interest share, for leases entered into on-behalf
of a joint-operation if the Group has the primary responsibility for making the lease payments. The Group théen
performs a subsequent assessment to determine if the asset is sub-leased to the joint arrangement. When the Group is
an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease
classification of a sub-lease as operating or finance lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the -
head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. ‘

For contracts in scope, the Group, as the lessee, recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease
commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or
the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the
earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term.

The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment.
In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re- -
measurements of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of lease paymerits that
are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determmed the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. . -

Lease payments mcluded in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the followmg
-« Fixed payments, mcludlng in - substance fixed payments;

*. Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using

» the index or rate as at the commencement date;

*  Amounts éxpected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

 The exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably certain to exercise, lease paymients in an
‘optional renewal period if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early
termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Lease payments are allocated between prmcnpal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of-the liability for each
period.

The lease liability is re-measured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index
or rate, if there is a change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee; or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or. termination
option. o

When the lease liability is re-measured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero. . .
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2.14  Leases (continued)
Short term and low value leases

The Group, as lessee, has availed the exemption from lessee accounting for its short-term leases (lease term of 12
months or less) and leases of low-value items to leases of assets that are valued below €10,000. Accordingly for
these leases, it recognises the lease payments as an expense, on either a straight line basis over the lease term or
another systematic basis if that basis is more representative of the pattern of the Group's benefit.

2.15  Revenue and over/underlift

Revenue, which is stated net of value added tax, represents oil and gas products sold and the transportation and

processing services provided. Contracts for goods and services are analysed to determine the distinct performance -
obligations against which revenue should be recognised. The amount to ‘be recognised is determined from the

standalone selling prices for goods and services, allocated to the performance obligations. :

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the performance obligations are satisfied by transferring a promised good or

service to a customer. For sales resulting from hydrocarbon production, this generally occurs when the product is

physically transferred into a vessel, pipe or other delivery mechanism. Revenue resulting from hydrocarbon production

from properties in which the Group has an interest with partners in joint arrangements is recognised on the basis of
_the Group’s volumes lifted and sold. Lifting or offtake arrangements for oil and gas produced in certain of the Group’s

oil and gas properties are such that each participant may not receive and sell its precise share of the overall production

in each period. The resulting imbalance between cumulative entitlement and cumulative volume sold less.inventory
is an “underlift”” or “overlift”. Underlift and overlift are valued at market value and included within receivables and

payables respectively. Movements durmg an accounting period are adjusted through cost of sales in the statement of

comprehensive income. :

Revenue from transportation and processing services arises from tariffs for third party use of owned pipelines and
infrastructure. Tariffs are recognised at the end of the month for plpelme movements during the month and are based
on quantity transported through the pipeline.

The timing of revenue recognition of the Group’s sales transactions under transportation and processing services’
provided are over time. Other revenues are recognised at a point in time.

2.16  Finance incon;e and expense policy

Finance expenses comprise interest payable and other finance charges, unwinding of the discount on provisions and
net foreign exchange losses. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of an asset that takes a substantial time to be prepared for use, are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Finance
income includes interest receivable on funds invested and net foreign exchange gains.’

Finance income and expense is recognised in the statement of comprehenswe income-as it accrues, using the effective
interest method. Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basns

2.17  Exceptional items

The presentation of the Group’s results separately identifies the effect of profits and losses on the disposal of
businesses, the impairment of goodwill, the cost of restructuring-acquired businesses and the impact of one off events
such as legal settlements as exceptional items. Results excluding disposals, impairments, restructuring costs and one
off items are used by management and are presented in order to provide readers with a clear and consistent presentation.
of the underlying operating performance of the Group’s ongoing business.
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2.18  Taxation . .

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the statement of .
comprehensive income except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is
recognised in equity. -

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the period end date, and ary adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. '

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following temporary differences are not provided
-for: the initial recognition of goodwill; thé initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profit other than in a business combination, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent
that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected .
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the period end date. A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.-

2.19  Share capztal
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the-issue of new shares-are shown
in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. '

2.20  Segmental analysis

The Group determines its operating segments in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-makers. The chief operating decision-makers are responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments. The chief operating decision-makers are the members of the Executive
Committee of the intermediate parent undertaking, INEOS Upstream Holdings Limited.

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues
and incur expenses and for which discrete financial information is available. An operating segment’s operating results
are reviewed regularly by the chief operating decision-makers to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the
segments and assess their performance. » .

The Group’s primary format for segment reporting is based on business segments. The business segments are
determined based on the Group’s management and internal reporting: structure and the aggregation criteria set out in
IFRS 8. Segment results that are reported to the chief operating decision-makers include items directly attributable to
a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.

2.21 Govemment grants

Government grants are assistance by government in the form of transfers of resources to an entity in return for past or
fature compliance with certain conditions relating to the operating activities of the entity. They exclude those forms,
- of government assistance which cannot reasonably have a value placed upon them and transactions with government
which cannot be distinguished from the normal trading transactions of the entity.

Government grants related to assets are shown in the consolidated statement of financial position as deferred income.
This income is amortised on a straight-line basis over the same period as the tangible fixed asset to which it relates or
the life of the related project. Grants related to income are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.
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222 New and amended standards and interpretations

The Group has adopted the following amendments to accounting standards for the first time in 2021 with effect from
I January 2021, although none have had a material effect on the Group’s ﬁnanmal statements in the year unless
otherwise indicated:

* Amendment to IFRS 16- COVID-19- Related Rent Concessions - beyond 30 June 2021 (effective date 1 April
2021). The amendment introduces an optional practical expedient that simplifies how a lessee accounts for rent
concessions that are a direct consequence of COVlD 19.

+ Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7 and IFRS 16: lnterest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 has been

adopted and has been applied retrospectively. The amendments introduce a practical expedient relating to
modifications of financial instruments and lease contracts and specific hedge accounting requirements which is
triggered by a replacement of a benchmark interest rate in a contract with a new alternative benchmark rate.

2.23  Standards issued but not yet effective

"A number of new ‘standards and amendments are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 January 2022 and
earlier.application is permitted; however, the Group has not early adopted the new or amended standards in preparing
these consolldated financial statements :

The lmpact of thelr adoption is being assessed and is not expected to hiave a material. impact on the Group s ﬁnancral
statements in the period ofmltlal appllcatlon unless: otherwnse indicated..

«  Amendments to IAS 37: Onerous Contracts—Cost ofl~u|f'l|mg a Contract (effective date 1 January 2022)
* Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS 3 (effective date 1 January 2022).

* . Amendments to 1AS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment—Proceeds before Intended Use (effective date 1 January
2022). .

¢  Annual lmprovements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 (effectlve date | January 2022).
« [IFRS17 [nsurance Contracts (effective date I January 2023).

¢« Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Cla55|ﬁcat|on of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current (éffective date 1 January 2023).-

. ‘Amendments to IAS 12: Income taxes—deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single
transaction (effective date 1 January 2023).

*»  Amendments to IAS | Presentation of Financial Statements - and IFRS Pracnce Statement 2: Dlsclosure of
Accounting Policies (effective date 1 January 2023).

*  Amendments to IAS 8: Definition of Accounting Estimates (effective date 1 January 2023).
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’

2.24  Critical judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In applying the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in above, the directors are requlred to make
judgements (other than those involving estimations) that have a significant impact on the amounts recognised and to
make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experlence and other factors that are
considered to be relevant Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlymg assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accountmg estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Impairment of non-financial assets (Esttmate)

The.carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment and/or reversals of previous impairments. If any such indication exists, then the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives or that are not yet
available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated .each year.

Impairment losses on-intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are recognised when the recoverable amount -
of the cash generating unit which includes the asset is lower than the respective carrying amount. In accordance with
the ‘definition of a cash generating unit under IAS 36, the individual production plants generally do not represent
separate cash generating units, but are part of larger asset groups that form the cash generating units. Since the
assessment whether property, plant and equipment are impaired is based on long-term business plans for the cash
_ generating units and the determination of an appropriate discount rate, management used significant estimates and
assumptions in making these assessments. Forecast cash flows are the area subject to most uncertainty within these
models.due to the inherent varlablhty associated with the business cycle.

For oil and gas assets, the recoverable amount is calculated using valuation techmques and inputs of various estimates
including the expected future cash flowsbased on future production, commodity prices, exchange rates, discount rates
and inflation rates, of which discount rates, reserves estimates and commodity prices are considered to be the key
assumptions used in calculations. The discount rates applied in impairment tests are reassessed each year and .in
2021, the post-tax discount rates were between 6.9% to 8.0% (2020: 7.7% to 8.7%). Commodity price assumptions
are based on consensus from a group of third party oil and gas analysts and banks, they are reviewed and approved by
management. Refer to note 12 for-details.

As a result of the impairment review performed on the Group’s oil and gas assets, an impairment reversal of £79.4
milliori (2020: £nil) and an impairment charge of £13.4 million (2020: £66.1 million) was recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2021. Refer to note 12 for details. .

For exploration and evaluation assets, judgement is required to determine whether it is appropriate to continue to carry
costs associated on the stateément of financial-position. The costs are carried based on the current regulatory and
political environment or any known changes to that environment. They are subject to regular technical, commercial
and management review on at least an annual basis to confirm the continued intent to develop, or otherwise extract
value from, the dlscovery

£4.1 million (2020: £14.7 million) exploration assets were written off in the year due to unsuccessful results. No other
impairment was deemed necessary since the recoverable amounts were hlgher than their carrying value. Refer to note
13 for details. o
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2.24  Critical judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (conti'nued)

2

Oil and gas reserves (Estimate)

The Group estimates its oil and gas reserves based on information compiled by appropriately qualified persons relating
to geological and technical data on the size, depth, shape and grade of the reservoir and suitable production techniques
and recovery rates. Such an analysis requires complex geological judgements to interpret the data. The estimation of
recoverable reserves is based upon factors such as estimates of foreign exchange rates, commodity prices, future
capital requirements and production costs, along with geological assumptlons and)udgements made in estimating the
size and grade of the reservoir. .

Oil and gas rcscrves have a direct impact on cerlain amounts reported in the financial statements. Estimated reserves
are used in determining depreciation and depletion expenses, impairment testing for oil and gas properties and
goodwill, and the timing of decommissioning. Judgement is involved in determining when to use an alternative basis
for estimation of the reserves base in order to appropriately reflect the expected utilisation of the assets concerned.

Recognition and impairment of goodwi'l[ (Estimate)

Goodwill impairment testing is performed annually or if there is an indication of impairment. Goodwill impairments
tests are based on cash generating units (CGUs) and compare the recoverable amount of the unit with the respective
carrying amount. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use. The value in use is determined using a discounted cash flow method, considering
earnings forecasts of the CGU. These calculations require the use of estimates such as long-term price assumptions
and reserves.

Goodwill relates to the Danish CGU. The carrying amount of the Danish CGU is lower than its recoverable amount
thus no impairment is recognised and all Goodwill in the Norwegian CGU has been disposed of in the current financial
period. As a result of current year acquisitions in the Danish CGU, £10.4 million has immediately been recognised as
exceptional other income due to the fair value of the net assets and liabilities acquired being greater than the total
consideration transferred, please refer to note 3 for details. .The key assumptions used to determine the recoverable
amount for the CGU, such as the commodlty prices and discount rates, and ‘the related sensmwty analysis, are
disclosed and further explained in rote 13.

Tax provisions/assets (Estimate)

Tax provisions/assets are recognised when it is considered probable that there will be an outflow/inflow of funds to
- the relevant tax authorities, where provision/asset is recognised for the amount expected to be settled. The provision/
asset is updated at each reporting period by management through interpretation and application of known tax laws
with support of professional advisors where appropriate. Interpretations can change over time depending on
circumstance and precedent, which result in adjustment to the expected amount to be settled. Changes to the estimated
-amount would result in a charge or credit to the income statement in the period the change arises. The exception to
this is where tax provisions are subject to an indémnity- by a third party, for example those uncertain tax provisions
recognised in the subsidiaries on acquisition in 2017, which the changes to the estimated amount would offset against
movement in indemnification assets.

The Group’s current tax provision of £166.8 million relates to management’s assessment of the amount of tax payable
on open tax positions where the liabilities remain to be agreed with the Norwegian Oil Taxation Office. Uncertain tax
_items for which a provision of £213.5 million is made, relate principally to the interpretation of tax legislation
regarding arrangements entered into by the Group and consist primarily of transfer pricing issues in relation to gas
sales agreements and other intra group transactions. Due to the uncertainty associated with such tax items, there is a
possibility that, on conclusion of open tax matters at a future date, the final outcome may differ significantly. Whilst
a range of outcomes is reasonably possible, the extent of the reasonably possible range is from additional liabilities of
up to £0.0 million to'a reduction in liabilities of up to £213.5 million. £213.5 million of the above provision is subject
to an indemnity by a third party, and where the changes to the estimated amount would offset against movement in
indemnification assets. Refer to note 15 for details.
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2.24 . Critical judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (contmued)

" The Group has recognized a deferred tax asset of £ 507.5 million. The basis for the recognition has been the model
applied to determine impairment of non-financial assets, (whlch is described on page 38), and adjusted for certain
items to determine the: future estimated taxable income.

The Group has deferred tax assets of £507.5 million and liabilities of£l 3 mrllron as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
assets of £11.5 million and liabilities of £116.9 million) based on an assessment of expected future profits'against the
gross tax losses available, refer to note 23 for details. :

Exceptional costs (Judgement)

The presentation of the Group’s results separately identifies the effect of profits and losses on the disposal of
businesses, the impairment of goodwill, the cost of restructuring acquired-businesses and the impact of one-off events
such as legal settlements as exceptional items. Judgement is involved in determining if the costs incurred are’ deemed
as exceptional, exceptional items are reviewed individually but are determined under a common process and consistent
basis. A change in that judgement could result in changes in Normalised EBITDA (page 5).

Provisions (Estimate)

Provisions are recognised for the cost of remediation works where there is a legal or constructive obligation for such .
work to be carried out. Where the estimated obligation arises upon initial recognition of the related asset, the
corresponding debit is treated as part of the cost of the related assets and depreciated over its estimated useful life.
The ummg of the recognition requires an assessment of existing facts and circumstances, which can be subjéect to
change. Estimates of the amount of provisions recognised are based on current legal and constructive requirements,
technology, and prices. Because actual outflows can differ from the estimate due to changes in laws, regulations,
public expectation, technology, prices and can take place many years in the future, the carrying amounts of the
provisions are regularly reviewed and adjusted to take account of such changes. ’ :

The decommissioning of oil and gas assets may not be due to occur for many years into the future (between 2022 and
2045). Consequently, judgement is required in relation to the estimated cash flows, removal date envrronmental
legislation, inflation and discount rate used to calculate present value

Provisions are recognised for the expected cost of dilapidation and restoration work where there is a legal or
constructive obligation for such work to be camed out.

The nature and amount of. prowsrons included in the ﬁnanmal statements as well as the key assumptrons used, are
detailed in note 21. .

The discount rate applied to reflect the time value ofmoney in the carrying amount of provisions requires estimation.
The discount rate applied is reviewed regularly and adjusted following changes in market rates. If the estimated
discount rate, one of the key assumptions in determining the provisions, used in the calculation had been 1% higher
than management’s estimate, the carrying amount of the provision would have been £91.1 million lower. :

2.25 Reclassiﬁcgtions

Gains and losses on commodity derivative financial instruments have been reclassified from finance income and
expenses to other operating income and expenses in the statement of comprehensive income and related notes to the
consolidated financial statements, and cashflows arising from financing activities to operating activities on the
statement of cash flows consistent with the requirements of [AS 1 and IAS 7. These amounts should not have been
included within finance income / expenses in the income statement and financing activities within the cash flow .
statement because they are operating in nature, and this presentation more accurately reflects the operating
characteristics of the financial instruments. The impact of the restatement results in a decrease in the operating loss of
£65.5 mitlion and a nil impact on the profit / (loss) for the year ended 31 December 2020. This results from a reduction
of finance income of £65.5 mrllron and a corresponding increase in operating income of £65.5 million. See notes 7
and 10 respectively.
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2.25 Reclassification (cantinuéd)

As 31 Reclassification As
e " December ) of derivative  reclassified
2020 as * gains7 losses for year
previously ’ . ended 31

classified December

) 2020 -
Statement of comprehensive income . £'000 . £000
Other income - ' . 73 65,505 65,578
Operating (loss) S (150,284) . 26,509 (123,775)*
Finance income : . 77,628 - . (65,505) 5,816
(Loss).for the year - 4 (226,234) _ - (226,234)

Statement of cash flows

Net cash generated from operating activities ‘ ' 103,677 145,335 249,012
Net cash from / (used) in financing activities : 46,444 (145,335) (98,891)

*Note: operating (loss) also includes the impact of restating the comparatlves for dlscontmued operatlons of £38.9
million, as set out in Note 4 to the financial statements.
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3 Acquisitions of subsidiaries
~ Acquisitions in current year

On 30 August 2021, the Group’s subsidiary, INEOS E&P A/S, acquired Hess Denmark ApS (now [NEOS Energy
(Syde Arne) ApS). The acquisition comprises 61.5% of the HESS operated Syd Ame oil field (which the Group
- already holds 36.8%-prior to the acquisition) and 4.8% interest in the Solsort field which the Group holds the

operatorship. The acquisition unlocked operational and cost synergies between the Group’s Danish assets and opened .

up prospects in Denmark’s offshore oil and gas sector.

Recognised
provisional values
on acquisition

£000
Acquiree’s provisional net assets recognised at the acquisition date:’ ) .
Property, plant and equipment . o . . 274,020
Right-of-use assets 18,196
Deferred tax assets 51,509
Inventories 9,536
Trade and other receivables 6,423
Cash and cash equivalents 2,052
Tax receivables ‘ 2,139
Trade and other payables L o o . (11,103)
Leases liabilities . . . (18,196)
Provisions ’ _ . ) . ’ (223,671)
Net assets ' : . . ) o 110,905
Consideration paid: ' S '
Cash 95,282
Deferred consideration 4,687
Total consideration transferred - 99,969
Negative goodwill at acquisition B . (10,936)
Recognised as exceptional income ’ - 10,400
Effect of movement in foreign exchange 536

Goodwill as at 31 December 2021

The fair values disclosed are provisional as at 30 August 2021. This is due to the complexity of the acquisition and
-the inherently uncertain nature of the oil and gas sector; further work will be required to confirm the final fair value.
The finalisation of the valuation work required to determine the fair values of the assets and liabilities acquired will
be completed within 12 months of the acquisition date, at the latest.

Discounted cash flow model was used to estimate the fair value of acquired pro'pérty, plant and equipment, which -

included oil and gas assets, based on the life-of-field plans and their relating decommissioning liabilities. Expected
future cash flows are based on estimates of future production and commodity prices, operating costs, and forecast
capital expenditures using the life-of-field plan as at the acquisition date.

Deferred consideration of £4.7 million relates to several tax settlements, which remains unsettled at year end and is
iricluded within current liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position based on the timing of expected
payments, refer to note 22 for details.
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As the fair value of the net assets and liabilities is greater than the total consideration transferred, in accordance with
IFRS 3, £10.4 million has immediately been recognlsed as exceptional income in the current financial period. Please -
refer to note 8. :

- The revenue included in the cbnsolidatéd statement of comprehensive income since 30 August.to 31 December 2021
contributed by the acquired entity was £32.9 million. They incurred £1.9 million loss before tax over the same period.

If INEOS Energy (Syd Arne) ApS had been consolidated from 1 January 2021, the conso-lidatcd statement of
comprehensive income would show pro-forma revenue from the entity of £81.2 million and a loss before tax of £27.8
‘million for the year ended 31 December 2021.

' ~ Acquisitions in prmr year

On 19 November 2020, the Group’s sub51d1ary, INEOS E&P A/S acquired Spirit Energy Danmark ApS (now “INEOS
E&P (Petroleum Denmark) ApS™) and Spirit Energy Petroleum Danmark AS (now “INEOS E&P (Norge) Petroleum
DK AS”) from Bayerngas Norge AS. The acquisition covers ownership in the oil and gas license Hejre (40% interest),
Hejre extension (32% interest) and Solsort (30% interest). The acquisition helps to strengthen the Group’s overall oil
and gas Danish portfolio and reflects the Group’s confidence in the Hejre and Solsort discoveries.

Recognised final

values on
acquisition
. £'000
Acquiree’s final net assets recognised at the acquisition date: .
Trade and other receivables - : . 35,215
Cash and cash equivalents s ' . 1,045
Trade and other payables . ) (203)
Provisions . : : (66,128)
Net liabilities . i . ‘ - (30,071) ¢
Consideration paid: i » .
Cash e . N : . 23,949
_ Deferred consideration . . . . ’ 33,817
Total consideration transferred | ) . . 57,766
Indemnification asset . ’ s (10,116)
Total consideration : ) ) - 47,650
Goodwill at acquisition - ’ . ' ’ 77,721
Impairment . ) . ) C ) (3,957)
Effect of movement in foreign exchange i ) (16)
Goodwill as at 31 December 2020 - _ 73,748

The fair values disclosed were provisional as at 19 November 2020. This was due to the complexity of the acquisition
and the inherently uncertain nature of the oil and gas sector; further work was required to confirm the final fair'value.
The finalisation of the valuation work required to determine the fair values of the assets and liabilities acquired has
been completed within 12 months of the acquisition date.
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3 Acquisitions of subsidiaries (continued)

Discounted cash flow model was used to estimate the fair value of acquired property, plant and equipment, which
included oil and gas assets, based on the life- of-field plans. Expected future cash flows are based on estimates of
future production and-.commodity prlces operating costs, and forecast capltal expenditures using the life- of field plan
as at the acquisition date. '

Deferred consideration of £33.8 million relates to several tax settlements, of which £15.6 million remained unsettled
as at 31 December 2020 and has subsequently been repaid in the current financial period, refer to note 22 for details.

The Group also benefits from an indemnity in respect of decommissioning liabilities and uncertain tax liabilities
relating to pre-acquisition periods. An indemnification asset of DKK 84.1 million (£10.1 million), equnvalent to the
fair value of the underlying estimate of these liabilities, has been recognised by the Group and treated as a reduction

" in consideration. Refer to note 15 for details

" Goodwill of £77.7 million was recognised as a result of the acqulsmon of which none is expected to be deductlble
for income tax purposes. An impairment assessment was subsequently performed and an impairment of £4.0 million
was recognised in 2020. Refer to note 13 for details on goodwill.

As part of the sales and purchase agreement, the Group is subject to a contlngent consrderatlon of US$60.0 million
(£44.5 million) should a Final Investment Decision be made on Hejre and Solsort discoveries with notice issued to
the regulator. On the other hand, the Group is entitled to receive a contingent consideration of DKK 607.0 million
(£68.5 million) if a decision is made to not invest on Hejre and Solsort discoveries. These contingent liability and
asset have not been recognised because they are contingent on future events whlch have a high level of uncertainty
at the year end. Refer to note 29 for details.

The revenue included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income since 19 November to 31 December
2020 contributed by the acquired entities was £nil. They incurred £0.3 million loss before tax over the same period.

[f Spirit Energy Danmark ApS and Spirit Energy Petroleum Danmark AS had been consolidated from 1 January
2020, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income would have shown pro-forma revenue from these entities
of £nil and a loss before tax of £27.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2020.

.
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4 Disposal of subsidiaries
Disposals in current year -

On.25 March 2021, the Group’s subsidiary, INEOS E&P Norge A/S, entered into an agreement to divest its oil and
gas business in Norway to PGNiG Upstream Norway AS. The transaction balanced the Group’s portfolio of oil and
gas production and move the Group towards a more operated position, which was completed on 30 September 2021.

-

The disposals had the folloWing effect on the Group’s assets and liabilities: ‘

Recognised values

on disposal
. . £'000
Subsidiary’s net assets recognised at the disposal date: .
Property, piant and equipment - : : o ' 365,076
Investments - . BN . ) . © 1,280
Intangible assets A ' ' ' . A 30,250
Inventory . . ) ' 814
Indemnification assets ’ . ) . 8,295
Trade and other receivables | ' ) 9,980
Goodwill . 4 _ ‘ o : : 96,210
Taxations _ " : o o (344,447)
Trade and other payables : . (25,353)
Provisions v _ : : . ) ' " (132,370)
Net assets of disposal group . ’ ' ) 9,735
- Proceeds: ' E ) ‘
Consideration ‘ o _ ' ' ' 159,683
Disposal costs . ’ ) ’ ’ ) - (708)
Net proceeds . 158,975
Gain on disposal . ' . 149,240

The gain arose on disposal, being the difference between net proceeds of $213.4 million (£159.0 million) and net’
assets disposed, amounted to £149.2 million and was recognised on the statement of comprehensive income.
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4 Dlsposal of subsidiaries (contmued)

As a result of the disposal of INEOS E&P Norge A/S the financial results relating to thé subsidiary have been
classified as discontinued operations and the. primary statements and associated disclosures have been reclassified.
The discontinued operations which have been included in the consolidated statement of comprehenswe mcome for

the year, were as follows:

Discontinued operations Period ended 30 Year ended .
September 2021 31 December -
2020
£'000 "£'000
Revenue 428,783 215,424 .

Cost of sales - (126,572) (170,865)
Gross profit 302,211 44,559
_ Total admiinistrative expenses - (10,771) (5,563)
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations " 149,240 ' -
Operating profit 440,680 38,996
Profit on disposal of fixed assets - 107
Finance income : 761 274
Finance expense (5,618) 2,531
Profit before tax 435,823 36,846
Taxation ' _ (233,020) *(40,604)
Net profit/ (loss) attributable to discpntim'Jed‘ operations 202,803 (3,758)
Period ended 30 Year ended 31

September 2021 December

- 2020

. - £'000 £'000
Operating profit 440,680 38,996
Depreciation for the year 59,981 79,842
EBITDA™ . .500,661 118,838
Profit on disposal of fixed assets - (107)
Unsuccessful exploration and evaluation activities ' . 479
Exceptional items 356 368
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations (149,240) R

119,578 °

Normalised EBITDA from discontinued operations

501,017

During the year, INEOS E&P Norge A/S contributed £246.1 million (2020: £59.5 million) to the Group’s net
operating cash flows, paid £30.5 million (2020: £13.4 million) in respect of investing activities and pald £3.9 million

(2020: £3.8 million) in respect of financing activities.

_ Disposals in prior year

As part of an internal orgahisational restructuring, the Group sold its entire interest in INEOS FPS Group on 15 June
2020 to a fellow group company, INEOS Industries Holdings Limited for a consideration of $262.7 million (£213.3
million). The consideration was settled through a combination of cash and a loan to INEOS Industries Holdmgs

Limited.

The net assets of INEOS FPS Group and its subsidiaries at the date of disposal were as follows:
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4 Disposal of subsidiaries (continued)

-Subsidiary’s net _asséfs recognised at the disposal date:

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Lease assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Interest-bearing loans and borrowmgs
Lease liabilities
Trade and other payables

" Provisions )

- Net assets of disposal group
Proceeds: -
Loan receivable
Cash and cash equivalents .
Amounts arising on common control transactions

INEOS UK E&P Holdings Limited
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Recognised values
on disposal
-£'000

268,148
931
17,554
3;518
119,973
10,487
(4,284)
(18,195)
(73,170
(178,680)

146,282

-184,946
28,335

66,999

" This was a transaction undei common control and the gain arose on dispoéal "being the difference between
consideration of $262.7 million (£213.3 million) and net assets disposed, amounted to £670 million and was

recognised in retained earnings as per the Group’s accounting pohcy

The results of the discontinued operatlons which have been included in the consohdated statement of comprehenswe .

income for the year, were as follows:

Discontinued operations

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Total administrative expenses

Operating profit

Finance income

Finance expense

Profit before tax

Taxation

Net profit attributable to discontinued operations

Period ended 15 Year ended
June 2020 31 December
2019

- 156,779. 346,528
(123,882) (288 089)
32,897 58,439
2,195 21,201

" 35,092 79,640

. S 259

- (1,120) (3,407)
33,977 76,492

- (12,306)

64,186

33977

47



INEOS UK E&P Holdings Limited
Annual Report and Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 -

Notes to the.consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Disposal of subsidiaries (continued)

Period ended 15 June Year ended 31

2020 . December 2019

£'000 } £'000

Operating profit ‘ ‘ V C .35,092 79,640
Depreciation for the year ' . : 10,984 21,887
Amortisation for the year . ’ I99 399
EBITDA ' 46,275 101,926
Exceptional items . - 1,400

3

Normallised' EBITDA from discontinued operations. - 46,275 103,326

During the year, INEOS FPS Group contributed £39.4 million (2019: £58.1 million) to the Group’s net opérating
cash flows, paid £29.8 million (2019: £17.7 million) iri réspect ofmvestmg activities and paid £0.2 million (2019:
£2.6 million) in respect of financing activities.

5 Operating segments'

The determination of the Group’s operating segments is-based on the business units for which information is repor"ted
to the Group’s Chief Operating Decision Maker. The Group’s reportable segments are based on geographic region -
and the nature of the operation. Information regarding the operations of each reportable segment is included in the
following table. Segments mainly engage in the exploration, development and production and sale of oil and gas.
Performance is measured based on earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation, measured under [FRS
(“Segment EBITDA™) and after adjustment for exceptional or non-recurring items: (“Normalised. EBITDA™).
Normalised EBITDA is used to measure performance as management believes that such information is the most
relevant in evaluating the results of segments relative to each other and similar businesses that operate within the oil
and gas industry. Information regarding segments reviewed by management includes management accounts
comprising the profit -or loss, cash flows and other ﬁnanmal and non-financial information used to manage the
business.
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5 Operating Segments (continuéd) -

Segment information — 2021

Revenue
External customers
Segment revenue -

Segment EBITDA "
Exceptional items (nbte 8)
Unsuccessful exploration and

-, evaluation activities (note 13)

Impairment (reversal)/ charge
(note 12) o

Gain on derivative financial
instruments (note 7)

Loss on derivative financial
instruments (note 7)

Gain on disposal of discontinued

operations{note 4)
Normalised EBITDA

Non-current assets

Segment information — 2020

Revenue

External customers
Inter-segment sales
Segment revenue

Segment EBITDA
Exceptional items (note 8)

Unsuccessful exploration and .
evaluation activities (note 13)

Impairment charge (note & 13) -

Gain on derivative financial
instruments (note 7)*

Loss on derivative financial*
instruments (note 7)*

Loss/ (Gain) on disposal of fixed
assets (note 7) .
Normalised EBITDA

Non-current assets

*Discontinued operations (note 4), derivative gains and losses (note 2.25)
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Adjustments -

United ) ’ . Amounts in
omte Denmark Norway* FPS* Corporate and financial
Kingdom : P .

: : . eliminations statements

£000 £000 £000 £°000 £000 £000 - £7000
384,159 130,822 ' 428,783 - - - 943,764
384,159 130,822 428,783 - - - 943,764
(51,158) 40,916 500,661 - (851) - 489,568
1,814 (3,220) 356 - 851 - (199)
4,072 - - - - - 4,072
(79,376) 13,442 - - - - (65,934)
(54.612) - - - - - (54,612)
620,153 - - - - - 620,153
- - (149,240) - - - (149,240)
" 440,893 51,138 351,717 - - - 898,420
1,441,334 1,452,082 - - 1,598,857 (2,709,403) 1,782,870
United . Adjustments Amounts in
Lom e* Denmark Norway* FPS* Corporate : and financial
Kingdom . . : *
eliminations statements

£000 £7000 " £2000 £000 £000 £000 £000
103,052 64,270 215,424 156,779 - - 539,525
-8 - - - - - (8) -
103,060 64,270 215,424 156,779 - (8) 539,525
(2,909) 20,811 118,838 46,275 (297) - 182,718
1,265 2,515 368 - 297 - 4,445
14,219 - 479 - - - 14,698
59,761 10,273 - - - - 70,034
(71,538) - - - - - (71,538)
6,033 - - - - - 6,033
7 27 (107) - - - (73)
6,838 33,626 119,578 46,275 - - 206,317
384,408 - 1,088,587 - 438,382 - 1,996,386 (2,512,456) 1,395,307
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6 Revenue
Type of goods/ services
' 2021
£'000
United Inter-segment
] o . Kingdom  Denmark sales Total
" Sale of gas . 370,716 1,586 . - 372,302
Sale'of oil - _ 1,480 128,483 . 129,963
Other income relating to oil and gas production . o 3381 - 753 . - 4.134
Transporigtion and proceésing services ) 8,582 - - 8,582
' | 384,159 130,822 - 514981
2020*
£'000
. : .United Denmark Inter-segment Total
! Kingdom - sales
Sale of gas : . 87,635 2,686 S ® 90,313
- Sale of oil : . 666 - 61,533 - 62,199
Other income relating to .0il and gas production ' 8,662 - - . - 8.662 ’
Transportation and processing services 6,097 50 : R 6.147
B 103,060 64,269 : (8) 167,321
Geographical markets
2021 2020*
] £'000 £'000
UK A . 488,706 . 154,514
Rest of Europe . . 26,275 . 12,807
' 514,981 167,321
Timing of revenue recognition ) .
At a point in time v - : '506,399 161,174
Over time- . ' C s ' 8,582 C 6,147

514,981 167,321

*2020 disclosures in notes 6 to 11 are reclassified to disclose comparative discontinued operations results separately; disclosures
in notes 5, 7 and 10, gains and losses on derivative financial instruments are reclassified from finance income/expense (o other
operating income/expenses

'Pe N
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6 Revenue (contmued)

As discussed in note 30, revenues of approximately £362.6 million (2020: £87.4 mnlhon) are denved from w1der
INEOS Group entities, of which. £362.6 million (2020: £87.4 million) arose from the Group’s largest customer.

No contract assets and liabilities have been recognised in the consolldated statement of f'mancnal posmon of the Group.
Its impact, if any, was deemed immaterial. Analysis has concluded that the right of payment of the goods and services
sold by the Group is unconditional, except for the passage of time. Therefore, all rights of payment have been booked
as trade receivables.

No costs to obtain or fulfil contracts are incurred, therefore no related assets arise.

7 Operating expenses and auditor’s remuneration

" Included in consolidated statement of comp(ehénsive income are the Sfollowing:

2021 - 2020*

£'000 £'000
Gain on disposal of fixed assets (Other operating 'incomc)' ‘ ' _ R (73)
Adjustment for changes in estimates (indemnification assets) (note 15) (146,734) -
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations (note 4) ' : S 1(149,240) -
Depremanon charge (note 12 and 26) - 139,098 140,991
Amortisation charge (note 13) 201 389
Exceptional items (note 8) © (555) ' 4,077
Unsuccessful evaluation and exploration activities (note 13) S 4072 14219
Impairment (reversal) on fixed assets {note 12) (79,376) -
Impairment loss on fixed assets (note 12) ] 13,442 66,077
Impairment loss on goodwill (note 13) . . 3,957
Discontinued operations’ depreciation and amortisation (note 4) 59,981 ' .91,025
Govermment grant : A . ’ . (12,400)
Gain on derivative financial instruments’ : ) ) (54,612) - (71,538)
Loss on derivative financial instruments o ' ' o 620,153 6,033
Auditor’s remuneration:

2021 2020

£'000 £'000
Audit of the consolidated financial statements . . . 78 78
Amounts receivable in respect of other services to the Company and its subsidiaries: ‘
Audit of the individual Company financial statements ' ) - o 26 25
Audit of financial statements of subsidiaries of the Company . ' 377 » 422
Audit related assurance services K . . 94 ' 48
Other tax advisory services ‘ ' ] ; .
Other assurance services T o . ‘ 10 47

585 620
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-~

8 Exceptional items

Exceptional administrative (gains)/ expenses

2021 2020*
£'000 £'000
Negative goodwill recognised (note 3) . : ' t!0’400) -
Contingent consideration realised - ~ . - ) - 239
"Restructuring costs . ) . 8,994 . 3,780
Acquisilion costs - : ] ' 851 . 58

-(555) 4,077 -

2021

‘ Exceptional administrative gains . -

On 30 August 2021 the Group acqu1red Hess Denmark ApS Total consideration paid was £100.0 million to purchase :
net assets with a provisional fair-value on acquisition of £111.0 million. The resulting riegative goodwrll of £10.4
million has been credited to the consolidated income statement as an exceptional admlmstratwe gam in the year with
the remaining movement of £0.6 million due to foreign exchange (see Note 3)

Exceptional administrative expenses

Exceptional restructuring costs of £9.0 million, have been charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2021 in relation to internal restructuring of senior management and one-off
restructuring costs relating to current year acqmsrtlons A further £0.8 million of exceptional acquisition costs were
recognised in the current financial period. :

2020 :
£0.2 million is recognised within payables in relation to the Group’s sub51d1ary s disposal of part of its interest in the
Glenlivet field from previous ownershnp

Exceptional restructuring costs of £4 1 million have been charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2020 in relation to internal restructuring of senior management and one-off
restructuring costs from one of the Group’s joint operations. A further £0.1 million exceptional acquisition costs were
recognised in relation to potential acquisitions, which have not been pursued or completed..

9" Staff numbers and costs .

The average numberof persons employed by the Groun (including directors) during the year, analysed by category,
was as follows: ’
Number of employees

2021 2020*
Production N ' 171. ‘ 173
Administration and support ' ' : . 77 91
Research and development ’ 16 25

264 289
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9  Staff numbers and costs (continued)

The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were as follows:

Wages and salaries
Social security costs

Contributions to defined contribution plans

10 Finance income and expense_

Finance income .

Interest income on cash and cash equivalents
interest income from Group undertakings’
Other interest income

Foreign exchange gains
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Total finance income

Finance expense
Interest expens_é ;)n financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Interest paid to Group undcnakings?
" Other interest e-xpense
Interest payable on lease liabilities ’ \

Unwind of discount on provisions.and deferred consideration

Net loss arising on modification of financial instruments measured at
amortised cost that were not derecognised .

Foreign exchange losses

Total finance expense

2021 2020
£'000 £'000
26,122 25,815
859 1,479
2,163 2,328
29,144 29,622
2021 © 2020*
£'000 £'000
105 L1119
8,263 4,665
20 32
65,498 -
. 73,886 5,816
8,367 17,729
28,943 29.971°
565 418
1,254 1,132
3,885 - 5,339
10,803 2,655
- 59,719
- 116,963

53,817
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11 Taxation

Recognised in the consolidated income statement : 2021 2020*
o - - . £'000 £'000
Current tax . o '

Current tax income . ' ‘ ‘ oo ) , . (97,099) T (18,898)
Current tax - Prior year ' i ' - 139,634 11
Current tax expense/ (income) S . ' _ 42,535 (18,887)

" Deferred tax . -
Origination and reversal of temporary differences t : (445,769) - © 40,202

Adjustments for prior years  ° : . ' 1,189 749
Deferred Petroleum Revenue tax : ) ) .19 (640) °
Deferred tax (incom'e)/ expense (444,561) ) 40,311
“Total tax (income)/ expense . S (402,026) 21,424

- The tax on profit before tax for the year from contirruing operations is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax
applicable to oil and gas companies in the UK (2020 - higher than the standard rate of corporanon tax in the UK) of
'40% (2020 - 40%). The differences are reconciled below. ’

Reconciliation of effective tax rate . - ) ' . .
2021 2020*

. . £'000 £'000
Profiv/ (loss) before tax : . . (130,413) © (235,029)
Tax using the UK corporanon tax rate of 40% (2020: 40%) - (52,165) 94,012) -
Increase from effect of capital allowances depreciation ' ’ 5,843 4,465
Decrease from effect of tax incentive ’ . (56,221) (48,333)
Decrease from effect of expenses not deductible in determining taxable profit (tax loss) (43,997) - (26,254)
Financing costs not allowed for Special Consumption Tax (SCT) . 238 -
Increase in tax from adjustment for prior periods ’ 140,823 - 760
Other temporary differences not recognised . o 22,622 (39,127)
Decrease arising from group relief tax reconciliation ’ G 39)
Petroleum Revenue Tax o - 275 ] (640)
(Increase)/ decrease from incremental recognition of losses for which no deferred tax  (470,659) 209,050
recognised . ) o
Difference in rate of tax _ . : ' . . 51,219 15,554
Total tax (income)/ expense - : . (402,026) ) 21,424
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11 Taxation (continued)

The standard rate of corporation tax at 40%, includes the supplementary charge of 10% that is levied in respect of
ring fénce operations in the UK sector of the North Sea. Non-ring fenced UK proﬁts are taxable at the main rate of
corporation tax at 19%.

On 11 March 2021, durin‘g Budget 2021, the Government announced that the main rate of corporation tax will
increase to at 25% from | April 2023. Given that the Company is not providing any deferred tax at that rate this
change will not have any impact on the recorded tax position. :

On 26 May 2022, the Chancellor of the Exchequer, announced a new tax for Upstream-Oil & Gas Companies, an )
Energy Profits Levy, charging an additional 25% tax on UK oil & gas profits. The tax will take effect for profits
arising on and after 26 May 2022. The Government has stated that this is a temporary measure that is expected to be .
phased out no later than 31 December 2025. As the new legislation was not enacted at the balance sheet date, it has
not been accounted for in the period to 31 December 2021. However, the measure is not expected to materially
impact the reported balances for the period to 31 December 2021.
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12 Property, plant and equipment o

Cost- -

‘Balance at | January 2020 -

Additions

Chaﬁge in decommissioning_ provision
Business disposal (note 4)

Effect of movements in foreign exchange
Balance at 31. December 2020

Additions

Transfers.

Disposals

Change in decommissibning provision
Acquisitions (note 3)

‘Business dispoéal (note 4)

Effect of movements in foreign exchange
Balance at 31 December 2021

Accumulated depreciation and"
impairment

Balance at | January 2020

Depreciation chargg for the year
Impairment losses

Business disposal (note 4)

Effect of movements in foreign exchange
Balance at 31 Décember 2020

- Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals
Impairment losses
Impairment reversals
Business disposal (note 4)

" Effect of movements in foreign exchange
Balance at 31 December 2021

Net book value
At 31 December 2020
At 31 December 2021
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Land and .Plant and Furniture and Oil and gas .

buildings equipment equipment properties Total

£000 £'000 £000 £000  £'000

1,789 287,470 2,126 2,729,989 3,021,374

- 31,752 112 19,031 50,895

. - @) (31,488) (31,492)

(1,789) (319,222) - . (321,011)
- - 12 19,106 19,118 .

- - 2,246 2,736,638 . . 2,738,884

- - 86 . 51,39 51,482
- - . 10,245 10245

- - an - 17y

- N 2 14,474 14,476

- . - 274,020 274,020

- - (130) (724,313) ©(724,443)

- - (19) (32,887) (32,906)

- - . 2,168 2,329,573 2,331,741

(126) (42,780) (1,264) (1,685,874) (1,730,044)

- (13) (9,944) (291) (216,832) (227,080)

- - - (66,077) (66,077)

139 52,724 - - 52,863

- - ) (19,496) (19,501)

- - (1,560) (1,988,279) (1,989,839)

: ; @01) (194,335) (194,536)

- - 7 ; 17

- - - (13,442) (13,442)

- - - 79,376 79,376

- - 122 359,623 359,745

- - 10 19,882 19,892

- - (1,612) (1,737,175) (1,738,787)

- - 686 748,359 . 749,045

- - 556 592,398 592,954
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' 12 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

All assets (2020: All) are pledged as security for the bank loan the Group obtamed since 2016 (see note 18). In 2021
this encompasses the removal of Norwegian asserts (see note 4) and business acquisitions in Denmark (see note 3).

Impairment test. -

2021

The significant increase in oil and gas prices in 2021 is seen as an indication of impairment reversal and therefore
the Group has revnewed the carrying value of its oil and gas properties across all segments. -

The recoverable amount of the assets has been determined based on.the higher of value-in-use and fair value less
cost to sell. These calculations use cash flow projections over the life of fields based on commercial and
production forecasts. The significant increase in realised gas price from an average of 25.2p per therm in 2020 to
91:0p per therm in 2021 is seen as an impairment reversal trigger, and the Group has performed impairment
assessments on all of its oil and gas assets at year end. As a result of the assessment, an impairment reversal of £79.4
million, being the maximum available, was recognised against the Group’s UK assets (2020: nil) and an impairment
. charge of £13.4 million against the Group’s Danish assets in connection to the 2021 change in decommissioning
estimate (2020: £66.1 million charge against the Group’s UK and Danish assets).

No impairment charges or reversals were necessary or available on other assets since the recoverab[e amounts
were higher than their carrying value.

The key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations are as follows:

) Breagh /Greater Laggan Area Siri Area
Long term gas price (p/therm) : . o : 94 94
Long term o6il price ($/bbl) . . ) ) 66 . 66
Exchange rate (USD to GBP) ' C 1.40 | . - 1.40
Exchange rate (USD to DKK) . : ¢ : ' N/A 6.21
" Inflation rate ) 2% 2%
Post-tax discount rate ‘ : ' 8.04% 6.85%

Long term gas and oil prices are based on consensus from a ‘groﬁp of third barty oil and gas analysts and banks.

The discount rate applied was determined by calculating the Group’s weighted average cost of capital adjusted
for country specific risks. The sensitivity analyses below are based on a reasonably possible change in an,
assumption, with short term volatlllty of prices not consndered to have long-term sustainability. All" other
assumptlons constant. ‘

Sensmwty of recoverable amounts

Variance
£'000
) : Breagh GLA Siri Area
Discount rate 1% increase in discount rate” (20,216) - . 1,660 ' (226)
Discount rate 1% decrease in discount rate . 21,663 (2,140) 339,
Long term price ' 10% increase in long term price 79,358 30,020 4,742
Long term price ~ '10% decreasé in long term price _(79,679) (32,825) . (4,855)
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. 2020 ‘

The significant drop in oil and gas prices in 2020 is seen as an indication ofimpait;ment and therefore the Group
has reviewed the carrymg value of its oil and gas properties across all segments.

The recoverable amount of the assets has been determined based on the higher of value-in-use and fair value less
cost to sell. These calculations use cash flow projections over the life of” fields based on commercial and
production forecasts. As a result of the impairment assessment performed, an impairment charge of £66.1 million
was recognised across three assets in UK (Breagh /Greater Laggan Area) and Denmark (Siri Area) as at 31
Décember 2020. No impairment was deemed necessary on other assets since the recoverable amounts were higher
than their carrymg value. '

The key assumptions used in the value- m -use calculations.are as follows

o . Breagh /Greater Laggan Area | Siri Area
Long term gas price (p/thenn) . : 45 45
Long term oil price ($/bbl) » . . . .60 60
Exchange rate (USD to GBP) ' 125 | ) 1.25
Exchange rate (USD to DKK) ' ) . : N/A 6.76
Inflation rate ) . 2% 2%
Post-tax discount rate ) . ) 8.66% 7.71%

Long term gas and oil prices are based on consensus from a group of third party oil and gas analysts and banks.
Short term gas and oil prices are based on. forward curve (gas prlces -averaged- at 38p/ therm and oil prices at
$48/bbl).

The discount rate applied was determined by calculating the Group’s weighted average cost of capital adjusted
for country specific risks. The sensitivity analyses below are based on a reasonably possxble change in an
assumption, while holding all other assumptions constant.

.. The Group monitored the evolution of COVID-19 pandemic and its'impact on oil and gas prices. With successful
rollout of vaccination programme and continued virus control measures, a more positive outlook evolved for the
industry and global economy, however uncertainty remained on how the pandemic would evolve and its impact
on macroeconomic conditions and oil and gas prices. The Group -considered the low price environment at the
time within the below sensitivities calculated. The volatility of oil and gas prices in 2020 was seen as exceptional
as a result of COVID-19 pandemic. As a result, a higher level of upside and downside sensitivity was applied -
for the year ended 31 December 2019. With the evolution of COVID-19,.it was considered that such volatility.
was less likely to recur, and a lower level of upside and downside sensitivity was applied for the year ended 31
December 2020. Management noted that the sensitivity analysis only provides an indication of the effect of price
movement on the carrying value of the assets.

Sensitivity of recoverable amounts

Variance £'000

‘ ) A Breagh GLA Siri Area

Discount rate : 1% increase in discount rate " (6,913) C . 2455 (377)
Discount rate } 1% decrease in.discount rate 7,225 (2,836) 377
Long term price ° ~ 10% increase in long term price 38,560 20,711 7,569
_Long term price " - 10% decrease in long term price. (40,710) (24,337) (7,569)

58



INEOS UK E&P Holdings Limited
Annual Report and Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

13 lnta'ngible assets

Exploratioh
and evaluation

Goodwill  Software assets Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Cost .
Balance at | January 2020 ‘ ’ . 595,948 - 5,653 o 52,564 654,165
Additions - S 171 6628 . 6799
Goodwill arising on acquisitions 77,721 - - 77,721
Unsuccessful exploration and evaluation activities . ) - - (11,698) (14,698)
Disposals ' ' ' Lo M )
Business disposal (note 4) ' ' ; (1,995) - (1,995)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange . : (21,673) 58 113 '(2 1,502)
Balance at 31 December 2020 65i,996 3,887 _ 44,606 700,489
Additions - R S 14379 . 14379
Transfers . ' ' : : . ; . ©(10,245) (10,245)
Unsuccéssful exploration and evaluation activities - - 4,072) : .(_4,072)
Disposals . ' ‘ T (13) . , (13)
Business disposal (hote 4) - ’ (96,210) - (30,250) (126,460)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (163) - an 63 ' (171)
Balance at 31 December 2021 . 555,623 ' 3,803 14,481.. 573,907 -
Amortisation and impairment .
Balance at | January 2020 ) ' (497,456) (3,824) : - (501,280)
Amortisation for the year . ) Lo . (588) ' - (588)
Business disposal (note 4). . . - 1,064 . - 1,064 7
Impairment charge o . (3,957) . - - (3,957)
Effect of movements in-foreign exchange 18,071 - 27D - 18,044
Balance at 31 December 2020 . (483,342) (3.375) . ' . - (486,717)
Amortisation for the year » . S 2] - @9
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (3,748) 53 ' - (3,695)
" Balancé at 31 Decémber 2021 ' ' (487,090) . (3',613) - (496,703)
Net book value . , ' ‘
At 31 December 2020 : ' 168,654 . 512 44,606 213,772

‘AtJI December 2021 . ' 68,533 190 . 14,481 83,204
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13 Intangible assets (continued)
Gooawill and impairment charge

. US$781.5 million (£581.3 million) of goodwill was recognised in-2017 and related to the requirement to recognise
deferred tax on the difference between the assigned values and the tax bases of assets acquired and liabilities assumed
in a business combination at amounts that do not reflect fair value. US$652.3 million (£497.5 million) relating to the
Danish and UK CGU was impaired subsequent to the acquisition and the remaining US$129.1 million (£94.9 million)
goodwill relating to the Norwegian CGU was assessed for impairment at each year end.

As at 31 December 2021, goodwill relating to the Norwegian CGU has been fully disposed as part of the disposal of .
- the operations, please refer to note 4. The carrying amount of the Damsh CGU is lower than its recoverable amount
thus no impairment is recogmsed

Amortisation ,
Amortisation of £291,000 (2020 reclassified*: £389,000) is recognised within administrative expenses in ‘the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. )
Impairment test for Goodwill

2021

The carrying value of goodwill as at 31 December 2021 relates to goodwill acqunred through business combinations
in 2017 and 2020.

Norway “Denmark Total

£000 £000 £000

Goodwill as at 31 December 2020 o . 94,906 73,748 . 168,654
Business disposals (note-4) L - 1(96,210) S (96,210)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange ] ’ : - 1,306 (5,215) (3,909)

Goodwill as.at 31 December 2021 ' - " 68,533 68,533

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined based on the higher of value-in-use and fair value less
cost to sell. These calculations use cash flow projections over the life of fields based on commercial and
production forecasts.

The key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations are as follows.

Denmark
Long term gas price (p/therm) ’ . s 9 |
Long term oil price ($/bbl) ' 66
Exehange rate (USD to GBP) ’ : 1.40
Exchange rate (USD to DKK) . : : 6.21
Inflation rate ) T ’ - T2%
Post-tax discount rate . ’ 6.85%

Long term gas and oil prices are based on consensus from a group of third party .oil and gas analysts and banks.
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.13, Intangible assets (continued)

The discount rate appiied was determined by calculating the Group’s weighted average cost of capital adjusted
for country specific risks. No sensitivity analyses were deemed necessary on goodwill arose from prior year
acquisition, as the goodwill is supported by the contingent indemnification received and not related to above
assumptions.

The Group continues to monitor the ongoing impact of COVID-19 pandemic and its impact on oil and gas prices.
There remains uncertainty on how the recovery from the pandemic evolves and its impact on.macroeconomic
conditions and oil and gas prices, the Group has considered the increasing price environment at the time within
the below sensitivities calculated. Management note that this sensitivity analysis only provides an ipdication of
the effect of price movement on the carrying value of the assets. Management will always monitor movement in
market prices'and make changes to operational expenses and development projects to safeguard the ﬁnancnal
stability of the Group. .

2020

The ¢ carrying value of goodwill as at 31 December 2020 related to goodwnll acqulred through business combmatlons
in 2017 and 2020.

Norway Denmark Total

. £000 . £°000 £°000

Goodwill as at 31 December 2019 . 98492 - - ) 98,492
Goodwill arising on acquisitions : - ' 77,721 77,721
Impairment charge .- © 3,957 (3.957)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange . ‘ (3,586) (16) . (3,602)
Goodwill aé at 31 December 2020 ' ‘ _ 4 94,906 l 73,748 168,6544

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined based on' the higher of value-in-use and fair value less
cost to sell. These calculations use cash ﬂow projections over the life of fields based on commercial and
production forecasts '

The keyassumptlons used in the value-in-use calculations were as follows.

. Norway Denmark
Long term gas price (p/therm) o - 45 45
Long term oil price ($/bbl) _ . ) ' ' 60 : 60
Exchange rate (USD to GBP). 125 | . 1.25
Exchanige rate (USD to NOK) ' ' . 9.09 . N/A
Exchange rate (USD to DKK) P - ONAL 6.76
Iriflation rate ' : . B T 2% 2%
Post-tax discount rate . ‘ A 7.85% . 171%

Long term gas and oil prices are based on‘cqnsensus from a group of third party oil and gas analysts and banks.

The discount rate applied was determined by calculating the Group’s weighted average cost of capital adjusted
for country specific risks. The sensitivity analyses below are based on a reasonably possible change in-an
- assumption, while holding all other assumptions constant.
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13 Intangible assets (contmued) y

The sensitivity analyses below are based on a reasonably possible change in an assumptlon while holdmg all’

other assumptions constant. No sensitivity analyses were deemed necessary on goodwill arose from current year

- acquisition, as the goodwill is supported by the contmgent indemnification received and not related to above
assumptions. . .

The Group monitored the evolution of COVID-19 pandemic and its impact on oil and gas prices. With successful
rollout of vaccination programme and continued virus control measures, a more positive outlook evolved for the
industry and global economy, however uncertainty remained on how the pandemic would evolve and its impact -
on macroeconomic conditions and oil and gas prices. The Group considered the low price environment at the
time within the below sensitivities calculated. The volatility of oil and gas prices in 2020 was seen as exceptional
as a result of COVID-19 pandemic. As a result, a higher level of upside and downside sensitivity was applied .
for the year ended 31 December.2019. With the evolution of COVID-19, it was considered that such-volatility
was less likely to recur, and a lower level of upside and downside sensitivity was applied for the year ended 31 .
December 2020. Management noted that the sensitivity analysis only provndes an indication of the effect of price
movement on the carrying value of the assets.

An impairment of £16.2 million would i incur on gOOdWlll relating to the Norwegnan CGU should long term prlce‘
_ decrease by 10%

Sensitivity of recoverable amounts

- Norway
Variance
£'000
Discount Rate - i 1% increase in discount rate ) (6,393)
Discount Rate _ : 1% decrease in discount rate ° ' ' - 6,393
Long term price ’ 20% increase inllong term price o 33,580
Long term price : ’ o 20% decrease in long term.price . (33,580)

!
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14 Investments in associates and joint ventures

Balance at 1 January 2020
Acquisitions

Share of profit

Effect of movements in foreign exchange

Balance at 31 December 2020

Disposals

Effect of movements in foreign exchange

Balance at 31 December 2021

Joint venture

Associates Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
4 1,313 1,317
. : 5 s
4) . - @
- o s) (15)
- 7 1,303 1,303
- (1,280) (1,280)
(23)

- " (23).

The Group has a 20% interest in Shetland Land Lease Limited, a land rental company. The interests in the assocnate
are immaterial and therefore no further disclosures are made.

The Group consists of the .followingA subsidiaries:

Ownershi‘)

Denmark

Class of

Registered office shares held 2021 2020

. Anchor House, 15-19 Britten Street, . . . ) o
VINEOS UK SNS Limited London, England, SW3 3TY Ordinary 100% 100%

o . ’. . Anchor House, 15-19 Britten Street,- . : e o,
INEOS Clipper Svouth B Limited London, England, SW3 3TY - Ordinary 100% 100%

. - Anchor House, 15-19 Britten Street, . o o
. INEOS Clipper So‘uth C Limited London, England, SW3 3TY Ordinary 100% 100%
" INEOS E&P A/S Teknikerbyen 5, 1, 2830 Virum, Ordinary 100% 100%
Denmark . ]

INEOS E&P DK A/S Teknikerbyen 5, 1, 2830 Virum, 0oy 100% " 100% -
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Joint operations

~ N
\élass of Ownership
Registered office shares held 2021 2020
. Advokatfirmaet Malling & Hansen )
INEOS Grenland E&P A/S Damm, Hans Egedesvej 3. Postboks Ordinary 100% 100%
: 1046.-3900 Nuuk, Greenland
INEOS E&P. Foroyar P/F ’ J.H. Schreters Gota 7,100 Térshavn, Ordinary 0% 100%
Faroe Islands . i
o o b {novyn Norge AS Rafnes 3966 : o o
INEO.S E&P Norge A/S Stathelle, Norway Ordinary ' 4 100% 100%
o Anchor House, 15-19 Britten Street, . o " Aane
INAEOS E&P (UK) Limited London, England, SW3 3TY Orfimary 100%. lOQ/o
S - Anchor House, 15-19 Britten Street, o SO oy -
INEOS E&P (Siri) UK Limited London, England, SW3 3TY Ordinary 100% 100@
j oD o ' JRN Anchor House, 15-19 Britten Street, . o o '
.INEQS E&P Servnce:s (UK) Limited London, England, SW3 3TY Ordinary 100% 100%
18th Floor, 10 Upper Bank Street,
Shetland Land Lease Ltd -Canary Wharf, London, England, Ordinary 20% - 20%
E14 5BF : . :
INEOS E&P (Petro!eum Denmark) Teknikerbyen 5, 1, 2830 Virum, Of'dinary 100% 100%
ApS , Denmark . : ' )
INEOS E&P (Norge') Petroleum Veritasveien 25, 4007 Stavanger, Ordinary 100% 100%
DK AS Norway
Tekmkerbyen 51,2830 Virum, . o o
INEOS En?rgy (Syd Arne) ApS Denmark Ordinary 100% 0%

" Joint-control is defined as “the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, whlch exists only when the
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing controls”. All of the joint
operations of the Group are subject to Joint Operating Agreements (JOAs) which fall into this category and where the
participants in the agreements are entitled to a share of all the assets, obligations and liabilities of the operations, rather

than a share of the net assets.

.
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14 Investments in associates and jbint ventures (continued)

The contractual agreement for the licence interests in which the Group has an'investment do not typically convey
" control of the underlying. joint arrangement to any one party, even where one party has a greater than 50% equity
ownership of the area of interest.

The Group’s material joint operations as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are:

\

5604/26, 30

. Block Liéengc Field/ Discovery- Operator Group '
) name Net %
. ‘interest
United Kingdom
48/19aB, 48/20aD P0008 Clipper South INEOS UK SNS Limited 75%"
48/20b P1909 * Clipper Sduth INEOS UK SNS Limited 75%
48/19cF P0465 Clipper South ' INEOS UK SNS Limited 75%
42/].3a P1230 Breagh INEOS UK SNS Limited 70%
42/12a P1328 Breagh INEOS UK SNS Limited 70% .
206/1a POI11 . Laggan ' Total E&P UK Limited 20%
+205/5a ém_i 5d P1159 Tormore Total E&P UK Lirr;iped ‘ 20%
-+ 206/3a, 206/3b and P1453 Edradour Total E&P UK Limited 20%
206/4a
' 205/4b P1678 Tormore Total E&P UK Limited 20%
Denmark
5604/18 1/90 Lﬁlita INEOS E&P A/S 80%
5605/10, 14 4/95 Nini INEOS E&P A/S 57%
5604/16, 20; 5605/13, 6/95 Siri INEOS E&P A/S 100%
2204/22 ' 7/86 Lulita part * INEOS E&P A/S 80%
5604/29, 30 7/89 Syd Ame "Hess Denmark ApS 98%
5604/19, 20 16/98 . - Cecilie INEOS E&P A/S 56%
5603/24, 28; 5604/21, 5/98 chre INEOS E&P A}S 11040%
?203/28; 5604/21, 25 . 1/06 Hejre Extension - lNEbS E&P A/S ‘ 80%
5604725, 26, 29,:30 3/09 Solsort INEOS E&P A/S 65% '
4/98 " Solsort - INEOS E&P A/S 65%
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15 Iﬁdemniﬁcation assets

'

£'000

Balance at 1 January 2020 . - . ’ 218,551

' Adjustrﬁent for changes in estimates ’ . . : ' 2,213

~ Acquisitions (note 3) ' ’ ' : ' 10,116 -
Realised during the year ‘ 4 ' . ) (15,721)
Effect of movements in foréign exchange . o } : : 7,597
Balance at 31 December 2020 ' : . —222,7_56_
Adjustiment for changes in estimates ; . . 146,734
Business disposal (note 4) ' . ) . - . . (8,295)
Realised during the year ' T . o (16,913)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange - o . .(9,596)
Balance at 31 December 2021 ’ . . ——W
Non-current - o 205,075
Current | ' B ; : - A . . 17,681
Balance at 31 December 2020 ' - ' : T 222,756
Non-current : ) ' . 331,285
Current : , ’ . - 3,401
Bglance at 31 December 2021 ) ' . A —334,68_6—

As part of the acquisition of DONG E&P A/S in 2017, the Group benefits from an indemnity in respect of uncertain
-tax liabilities relating to pre-acquisition periods from Qrsted A/S. The Group also benefits from a contractual right to
receive sufficient cash to fulfil the obligation to settle actual payments in respect of the historical construction cost of
the Fredericia Gas Plant, regardless of amount and timing.

In 2020, a £2 2 million adjustment was. recogmsed to reflect the changes in estimates and £15.7 mllhon of the
obligation was settled. In 2021, £146.7 million adjustment was recognised to reflect the changes in estimates relating
to a reassessment of income in years 2007-2011 by the Norwegian Oil Taxation Office (OTO). £16.9 million of the
obligation was settled, please refer to note 22. These indemnification assets were valued at £343.2 million as at 31
I\)ecémber 2021 with the remaining movement due to foréign exchange (2020: £204.1 million).

. In 2020, as part of the acquisition of Spirit Energy Danmark ApS and Spirit Energy Petroleum Danmark AS, the -
- Group benefits from an indemnity in respect of uncertain tax liabilities relating to pre-acquisition period from
Bayerngas Norge AS and certain decommissioning liabilities. These indemnification assets were initially recognised
at £10.1 million on acquisition and subsequently retranslated at £9.5 million as at 31 December 2021. '

‘Total indemnification assets as at 31 December 2021 are £334.7 mnlllon (2020: £222.8 mllllon)

\
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16 Inventories ‘

2021 : 2020

. £'000 £'000

Goods and materials ' . ' . 19,156 17,840
19,156 17,840

Goods and materials recognised as cost of sales in the year amounted t;) £nil (2020: £nil). The write-down of
inventories to net realisable value amounted to £1.3 million (2020: £0.6 million). The reversal of previous write-downs
of inventories to net realisable value amounted to £nil (2020: £nil). :

17 Trade and other receivables

2021 » 2020
£000 | - £'000
Curr‘ent o . ’ , ) )
Trade receivables : 37,759 7,721
Trade-receivables due from rélated parties ) ) ' ' . o 78,675 45,637
Other receivables A ) . . . . 35,336 . 27,338
Prepayments and accrued in'come T ) : 18,680 " 21,904
Trade and other receivables ] . . 170,450 102,600
Tax receivable . ) 122,397 3 I,535
‘ ' 292,847 134,135
Non-Current ) .
' Other receivables due from related parties . . - 181,103 171,626
Prepayments . ) o . 8,654 1 6,095
: 189,757 : 187,721

As at 31 December 2021, £0.6 million of the trade receivables were i:vast due (2020: £2.2 million). All trade and other
receivables-are deemed as low risk and collectible on the basis of established credit management processes such as
regular analyses of the credit worthiness of our customers and external credit checks-where appropriate for new
customers. Trade and other receivables due from related parties are repayable on demand and do not accrue interest.
At 31 December 2020 and 2021 ‘there were no significant trade, related party or other receivables balances not past
due that were subsequently impaired.

Within other receivables the Group has £11.1 million (2020: £13.8 million) in restricted cash held at local banks
mainly related to the joint venture operations. This cash is not available to finance the Group’s day to day operations
and therefore has been excluded from cash and cash equivalents.for the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash:
flow and is disclosed within other receivables. .

Non-current receivables due from related parties related to loan receivables from a fellow groub company, INEOS
Industries Holdings Limited in relation of the disposal made in 2020. The loan amounting to US$227.8 million,
repayable in 2025, charges interest of 4.5% and is payable on a quarterly basis.
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17 Trade and other receivables (contmued)

Each entlty wnthm the Group has entered into a Deed of Charge over its assets in exchange for a financing facility
granted to the parent. The transaction has been accounted for as a bank loan as per note 18. Ifany entity defaults under
this financing facility, the bank has the right to receive the cash flows from the receivables transferred. Without default,
the entities will collect the receivables and allocate new receivables as collateral.

Credit risk lof trade receivableé .
‘ 2021 . 2020

. o o £000 £'000
Low ' : s S 116,434 " 53,358

116,434 ' 53,358

- The carrying amounts of the Group s trade, other and tax recelvables are denominated in the following currencies:

2021 ) 2020
' ) A £'000 © o £'000
British pound sterling ' ) 203,514 ' 54,787
Euros . : - ) | _5,929 ) 24,464
United States Dollars . . ' o : 35294 . 4,711
Other currencies ) . . 19430 28,269
: 274,167 . 112,231
18 Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
2021 2020
. £'000 £'000
Current liabilities '
Amounts due to related panies' o ' 1,758 . 3,939
Bank loans o : Tl 24,955

1,758 . .28,894

Non-current liabilities ] ) IR
Amounts due to related parties ,. 438,245 405,292
Bank loans - . . - 214,574
' 438245 619,866

~
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18 Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (continued)

Gross Debt and issue costs : .
’ Gross loans ' ) Net loans

and Loss on loan and
borrowings  Issue costs  modification  borrowings "
2021 2021, 202t C 2021
) £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
_Amounts due to related parties 440,003 - ’ - 440,003
Bank foans ‘ - C . - - -
440,003 - - - 440,003
L ’ |
Gross loans (Gain) on Net loans
and : loan ) and
borrowings ‘Issue costs modification  borrowings
2020 2020 2020 2020
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Amounts due to related parties ’ 409,231 : ) 409,231
Bank loans -, ' 247,031 . (10;157) 2,655 239,529
s 656,262 (10,157) 2,655 - 648,760

Amounts due to related parties

‘ The Group has a loan arrangement ‘with its parent lNEOS Offshore BCS lelted The loan amounting to US$575.3

- million (2020: $551.7 million) bears interest of 7% and the interest is payable on a quarterly basis, or is accrued into
the principal amount if unpaid. INEOS Offshore BCS Limited has indicated no repayment will be demanded for at
least 12 months from the approval of these ﬁnancnal statemcnts

. Bank loans

In September 2021 the Company, together with its fellow subsidiaries, amended and restated the RBL Facility to
accommodate restructuring of the activities of the Group; being the disposal of the trade and assets formerly held by
. INEOS Norge A/S and acquisition of further interests in Denmark (see note 3). In October 2021, the Company repaid
- the outstanding balance of the RBL Facility in full. Through qualitative assessment, management have concluded the
amendment to the facility constitutes a substantial modification and resulted in the immediate recognition of a £10.8 -
million expense relating to issued debt costs in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in 2021, please

refer to note 10. '

The RBL Facility is secured on customary terms and bears mterest at a margin above rlsk free rates The maJorlty of
the Company’s subsidiaries are the guarantors to the RBL Facility.

The RBL Facility includes obligations to maintain compliance with certain financial covenants, principally in relation
to debt incurrence, liquidity and leverage. Covenants are formally tested and reported to the lenders-on a regular.basis
and monitored mformally throughout the year All such covenants were fully complied with throughout the financial
year.
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18\ lnterest—bearing loans and borrowings (continued) .

The canyirig amounts of the Group’s interest-bearing loans and- borrowings are denominated in the following
currencies: . : :

.

2021 ‘ 2020
_ £'000 £'000
British pound sterling ' . - A 1,758 o 3939
Euros . ‘ : ) - 221,159
‘United States Dollars - - - ) 438,245 423,662
‘ 440,003 648,760
Reconcilihtion of net cash flow to movement in net debt .
2021 2020
. : ) £'000 - £'000
i(fl))f;;e;::?/ increase in cash and cash equivalents | (40,965) | 63.332
Cash outflow from change in debt financing - 234,943 80,841
Change in net debt resulting from cash flows . 193,978 144,173
Other net non-cash transactions _ ' (26,286) ' (38,392)
Movement in net debtin yea'r‘ B . ' 167,692 - - . 105,781
19 Trade and other payables
- 2021 ' 2020
£'000 ) £'000
- Current ) ) : ~
Trade payables . S 31,198 17,618 -
Trade bayables due to related parties . ) ' .59 820
" Other payables A SR ' 6,559 ' 44,114
Accruals and deferred income ) . T - 41,932 - 40,802
Trade and other payables S S 79,748 103,354
Tax payable : o : ' 166,788 137,870
L ) o 246536 2412
Non-Current ‘ A
Other payables o ' : 9,565 : 8,148
‘ o 9,565 . 8,148
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19 Trade and other payables (continued)

Included within trade and other payaBles is an amount of £218.8 million (2020: £74.8 million) relating to tax liabilities
that are subject to indemnification as explained in note 15 and for which an indemnification asset of equal amount is
recognised. Trade payables due to related parties are repayable on demand and do not accrue interest.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables are denominated in the following currencies:

2021 2020
£'000 £'000
British pound sterling ) C ) . 20,600 ' '50,641
" Euros ' o 1,665 1,145
United States Dollars .| S S s34 14,974

* Other currencies . o : A 228323 182,612

256,101 . 249,372

20 Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans.

The Group contributes to personal pension schemes on behalf of certain directors and employees. These schemes are
administered independently of the Group. The total pension cost which is charged to statement of comprehensive
income represents contributions payable by the Group and amounted to £2.2 million (2020: £2.3 million). There were
no contributions outstanding as at 31 December 2021 (2020: nil). .
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21 Provisions

Decommissioning , : ‘
& restoration .~ Other - Total

£'000 " £'000 £000 -
_ Balance at | January 2020 - ) . © 1,158,733 157,848 1,316,581
Provisions released /(made) dur'ing the year - . ' (65,312) 6,283 . (59,029)
"Provisions qsed during' the year : . (29,184) (19,151) e (48,335)
Acquisitions {(note 3) ' 57,459 T 8,669 66,128
Business disposal (note 4) ‘ (177,271) (1,409) - ‘ (178,680)
Unwinding of discount : 6,092 - 6,092
Effect of moveinents. in foreign exchange 32,312 8,241 40,553
Balance at 31 December 2020 o 982,829 o 160,481 l,i 43,3IQ
Provisions released '/(made) during the year A . (5,189) 4,304 (385)
Provisions used during the year - ' . . (33,361) (22,632) o (55,993)
Acquisitions (note 3) . 223,444 227 . 223,671
Business disposal (note 4) ’ - (132,370) Co . (132,370)
Unwinding of discount ‘ 3,106 : - 3,106
Effect of movements in fbreign exchange - (47,059) (10.972) . (58,031) -
Balance at 31 December 2021 ’ ) 991,400 . 131,908 1,123,308
. N
Non-current : ] 947,095 139,256 . I ,086,}5 |
Current, ' B : 35734 21,225 56,959
Balance at 31 December 2020 - . T 982,829 160,481 1,143,310
Non-current C 955,647 15,922 971,569
Current o : . 35753 115,986 151,739

Balance at 31 Décember 2021 . 991,400 - 131,908 1,123,308

Decommissioning & restoration

The Group has provided for its share of the estimated decommissioning and restoration costs of the facilities on fields
across Denmark and the United Kingdom, this includes plugging and abandonment of wells, the total removal of
platforms and disposal on shore, and the restoration of the seabed. The Group uses a range of risk free rates between
0.0% -0.7% (2020: between 0.0% -0.7%) and inflation rates between 0.1% -0.9% (2020: 0.2% - 0.9%) over the lives
of the assets to calculate the present value of the decommissioning and restoration costs. Decommissioning is expected
to occur after the fields reach the end of their economic lives on a schedule agreed with regulatory authormes and
Jomt venture partners between 2022 and 2045.
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21 Provisions (continued)
Other provisions

£129.5 million (2020: £156.0 million) of other provisions relates to the committed obligation to fund the Group’s
share of the historical construction cost of the Fredericia Gas Plant incurred in connection with the development of
the Hejre field. £110.3 million of this provision is subject to indemnification for which an indemnification asset is
recognised. Further details are included in note 15. .

22 -Defgrred.consideration
£'000

Balance at | January 2020 . : i 95,742
Unwinding of discount ) . -1,642
Acquisitions (note 3) : i . . 33,817 .
Consideration settled during the year . A . A 30,311
Effect of movements in foreigq exchange . ) T (2,653)
Balance atl3l De,cembel; 2020 o . . . ' W
Unwinding of discount . - . - . 1,798
Acquisitions (note 3) - ) . -4,687
Consideration settled durin'g the year .‘ ] ' (25,956)
Effect of movements in fofeign exchange ‘ ] o 62
Balance at 31 December 2021 ) ) W
Non-current . i - : 71,758
Current o . : ‘ B 26,479
Balance at 31 December 2020 ’ : ) ' . _98_,237
Non-current ' . ' _ . _ - ) o
Current . . . . . 78,828
‘Balance at 31 December 2021 ' ’ W ’

Deferred consideration relates to the obligation of the Group to pay US$150.0 million in instalments in connection
with the capital cost of the Fredericia Gas Plant as part of acquisition of DONG E&P A/S in 2017. In 2021, USS15
million (£11.0 nmiillion) was paid (US$45 million (£33.3 million) paid inception to date). The fair value of the
remaining deferred consideration payable is $105 million (£74.2 million) at 31 December 2021.

'Acquisitions in the year relates to taxation settlements to be paid back to the seller for the acquisitions made in the
year (see note 3), of which £nil has been subsequently settled by the end of the year.

cr
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23 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Recognised deferred tax assels and liabilities:

Assets Liabilities . Total

2021 2021 . ) 2021

£'000 £'000 © £'000

Property, plant and equif)ment ' o . . B (37,755) - (37,755)
Tax value of loss carry-forwards . . 456,880 ) - . 456,880

- Other ) T 87,064 ) - 87,064
Tax assets/(liabilities)A . - 543,944 - (37,755) 506,189
Net of tax assets/(liabilities) ' (36,460) 36,460 . : -
Net tax assets/ (liabilities) A . ) - 507,484 ‘ (1,225) . 506,189
Assets Liabilities Total

2020 - -2020 2020

£'000 - £'000 £'000

" Property, plant and equipment ' . ' - (324,858) (324,858)
Tax value of loss carry-forwards . . o 53,398 - 53,398
Other’ S 166,038 - 166,038
Tax assets/(liabilities) ' ) . 219,436 . (324,858) (105,422)
Net of tax assets/(liabilities) (207,977) ' '207,977. L.
Net tax assets/ (liabilities) ) . 11,459 (116,881) (105,422)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority. The following is the
analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for financial reporting purposes.

2021 2020 .
: : _ . : ) £'000 *£'000
Deferred tax assets ) . 507,484 11,459
Deferred tax liabilities : o ' : ] (1,295) (116,881)
' 506,189 (105,422)

, .

The Group has net deferred tax assets of £506.2 million as at 31 December 2021 (2020: (£105.4 million)).

The Group has recognized a deferred tax asset of £ 507.5 million. The basis for the recognition has been the model
applied to determine impairment of non-financial assets adjusted for certain items to determine the future estimated
taxable income. The increase in recognized deferred tax assets is due to the significant increase in oil and gas
prices in 2021.. :

Deferred tax assets arise principally on decommissioning provfsions, trading losses carried forward and Petroleum

Revenue Tax (PRT). The Group forecast indicates that there will not be suitable taxable profits to fully utilise those
deferred tax assets not offset against deferred tax liabilities in future years.
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The Group has not provided deferred tax of approximately £522.7 million on ring fence losses (2020: £878.4 million).
In addition, the Group has Danish tax losses of £2,322.6 million (2020: £1,940.3 million) and timing differences of "
£1,836.6 million (2020: £1,825.2 million) for which no deferred tax asset has been  provided due to a lack of probable
future taxable prof' ts against which these losses may be utilised.

Movement in deferred tax durmg the year

31

1 Prior’
January period Business . Recognised Translation December
T 2021 adjustment combination Disposal  inincome reserve 2021
£'000 £'000 £'000 . £'000 £'000 ~ £'000 . - £000
Accelerated tax depreciation (324,858) - 8,580 256,141 16,874 5,507 (37,756)
Tax losses carry-forwards ' 53,398 66 - 32,431 - 372,325 (1,340) 456,880
Other timing differences 166,038 - - 10,497 (128,704) 42,001 (2,767) 87,065
: (105,422) " 66. 51,508 127,437 431,200 1,400 506,189
Movement in deferred tax during the prior year :
: . Prior Opening ] ) 31
1 January period after Recognised  Translation December
2020 adjustment ° adjustment inincome reserve 2020
£'000 £'000 ~ £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Accelerated tax depreciation (415,996) . - (415,996) 89,754 1,384 (324,858)
Tax losses carry-forwards 287,581 (165,272) 122,309 (68911) - 53,398
Other timing differences. 51,459 165,272 216,731 (50,693) - 166,038
(76,956) - (76,956) (29,850) 1,384 (105,422)
24 Capital and reserves
Share capital and premium
Allotted
and fully  Ordinary Share
Authorlsed paid Shares premium  Total
. . " No. - No. £'000 £'000 £'000
As at | January 2021 and 31 December 202 74,327,242 74,327,242 74,327 232,994 . 307,321

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one.

vote per share at meetings of the Company.

Capital redemption reserve
Other reserves

Foreign currency translation (deficit)/reserve

2021 2020
£000 " £000
22,546 122,546
4,875 o
(28,256) 3,633
(835 26,179

In 2002 22,595,500 of redeemable convertible cumulative preference shares of £1 each were converted into various
classes of ordinary shares of £1 each and deferred ordinary shares of £1 each. Subsequently, they were reclassified to
ordinary shares and the deferred shares were redeemed, with the differences recognised as capital redemption reserve.
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24 Capital and reserves (contmued)

" Foreign currency translation (deficit) of £28.3 million (2020: reserve of £3.6 million) arose as a result-of translatmg
foreign operations’ balances into the Group’s reporting currency GBP. :

25_ Financial instruments
25 (a) Fair values of financial instruments
" Trade and other receivables

~ Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are tested for classification as per IFRS 9. If the trade’
receivables satisfy the criteria for the cash flow characteristics test and business model test as per. IFRS 9, then they
are recognised at amortised cost. If they do not quallfy for bemg recognised at amortised cost, they are recognised at
" fair value through profit and loss. . o

Indemmf cation assels - -

The carrying amount of indemnification assets approx1mates to falr value of the liabilities to which they relate, which
are carried at fair value. Where settlement is not due in the short term and the effect is material, fair value is estimated
as the present value of the future cash ﬂows dlscounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date.

Cash and cash equivalents '

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents is estimated as its carrying amount where the cash is repayable on demand.
Where it is not repayable on'demand, the fair value is estimated as the present value of the future cash flows discounted
at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. .

Trade and other payables

Payables are classified as current liabilities ifpayment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer). [f not they are presented as amounts falling due after more than one year.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially.at fair value. The carrying amount of trade and other payables
generally approximates to the fair value due to their short maturities. Where settlement is not due in the short-term
and where the effect is material, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective mterest method.

Interesl-bearmg loans and borrowings

Fair values of non-related party loans and borrowings are calculated based on the present value of the future principal
and interest cash flows discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. The falr value of related party
loans and bank loans are not materially different to the carrying value.

Derivatives :
The Group entered into a number of put option agreements for financial perlods through to 2024 with strike prices
. ranging from £0.37 to £0.40 per therm. None of the options were exercised in the year (2020: £76.1 million). As at 31
" December 2021, £nil (2020:.an asset of £21.3 million) has been recognised in respect of unrealised gains and losses
for the outstanding options. Put option premium is amortised throughout the life of the options and has been recognised
within the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. .

The Group also entered into swap agreements with fixed price ranging from £0.28 to £0.69 per therm. Some of the
contracts expired in the year contributing to a net realised derivative loss of £181.6 million (2020: gain of £52.3
million). As at 31 December 2021, a liability of £401.1'million (2020: an asset of £32.2 million) has been recognised
in respect of unrealised losses (2020: unrealised gains) for the outstanding swaps.

During 2021 the Group maintained a foreign currency hedge programme to manage the risks of fluctuations in
exchange rates. Liabilities denominated in foreign currencies which could not be satisfied from operating cash flows
were covered using forward purchases. As at-31 December 2021, a liability of £15,000 (2020: an asset of £2.5 million)
has been recogmsed in respect of unrealised losses on these contracts.
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25 Financial instruments (éontinued)

25 (a) Fair values of financial instruments (continued)

Fi mancza/ assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

On 30 July 2021, the Group purchased 25 million shares of HydrogenOne Capltal Growth plc for a total consideration
of £25 million. This represents 10% of issued shares. For investments in equity securities that are not held for trading,
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes to fair value in other comprehensive income: The
Group makes this election-on an investment-by-investment basis. When these investments are derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised dlrectly in equity is recognised in the i mcome statement. '

Sel out below is a comparison of the carrying amount and fair values of the Group’ s financial instruments. The
different levels have been defined as follows:

Level 1: valued using trading prices (uhadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities;

" Level 2: valued using inputs that are observable for the asset or Ilablllty, either directly (that is as prlces), or indirectly
(that are derived from prices); and :

Level 3: valued using inputs that are not observable for the asset or liability.

Carrying amounts and fair values at the reporting date . : . - .
) . . Carrying = Fair Carrying Fair

amount value amount value
2021 2021 © 2020 2020
: . £'000 £'000 ‘ £'000 £'000
Financial assets carried at amortised cost . - 4
Loan receivables ‘ L o 181,103 181,103 171,626 171,626
. Trade receivables . 37,759 37,759 7,721 7,721
Trade receivables due from related parties ‘ - 78,675 78,675 - 45,637 4 45,637
Other receivables 35,336 35,336 27,338 27,338
Other receivables due from related pariies . - - - - -
Cash and cash equivaients ! 89,871 ~ 89,871 130,936 Al30,936r
Total financial assets carried at amortised cost . 422,744 422,744 ’ ' 383,258 383,258
Financial assets carried at fair value ) _
Indemnified assets ’ ’ : : 334,686 334,686 222,756 222,756
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensnve ' 29,875 29,875 - -
income . . . . .
Derivatives ﬁnancnal. mstruments ) ' " 7,474 7,474 . 21,298 21,298

Total financial assets ' ‘ 794,779 794,779 627312 627,312
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25 'Financial instruments (continued)

25 (a) Fair values of financial instruments (continued)

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

amount: value - amount value

2021 2021 2020 2020

£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
‘Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost .
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings S ' ' 440,003 440,003 648,760 656,262
Deferred consideration . . 78828 78828 . 98237 98237
Lease liabilities o : - S 41962 41,962 764 27,764
Trade payables . - 31,198 31,198 C 17618 17618
Trade payables due to related parties ) © 59 59 7820 : 820
cher payables ' ’ ' ' : 16,124 16,124 52,262 52,262
Total l“mancial liabilities measured at 608,174 ’ 668,174 845,461 852,963
amortised cost ‘
Financial liabilities carried at fair value
Derivatives financial instruments ( 401,087 401,087 -34’7|4 34,714
Indemnified tax liabilities : ' 218,774 218,774 74,767 74,767
Total financial liabilities carried at fair value » 619,861 619,861 . 109,481 - 109,481

Total financial liabilities” 1,228,035 1,228,035 954,942 962,444

For all financial instruments within the scope of IFRS 9, the carrying amount is either the fair value, or approximates
the fair value. Derivatives financial instruments are categorised within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

25 (b) Credit risk -
Financial risk management

- Creditrisk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet
its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers and deposns with
financial institutions.

The policy and objectives in relation to credit risk is to minimise the likelihood that the Group will experience financial
loss due to counterparty failure and ensure that in the event of a loss, the failure of any single counterparty would not
materially impact the financial wellbeing of the Group.

Trade and other receivables

The Group’s exposure to crédit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However,
management also considers the demographics of the Group’s customer base, including the default risk of the industry
and country in which customers operate, as these factors may have an influence on credit risk. The Group has
established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness before the
Group’s standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered or are adjusted accordingly. The Group’s
review includes external ratings, when available, and in some cases bank references.
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25 Financial instruments (continued)
25 (b) Credit risk (continued) -

The Group applies the simplified approach when providing for expected credit losses prescribed by IFRS 9 for its
trade and other receivables, which requires the Group to recognise the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade
and other receivables taking in consideration historical as well as forward looking information.

The Group.does not hold collateral as security. The letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance are considered
integral part of trade and other receivables and taken into account in the calculation of impairment. To measure the
expected credit losses, trade and other receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and
the-days past due. At 31 December 2020 and 2021 there were no significant trade, related party or other receivables
- balances not past due that were subsequently impaired. Refer to note 17 for details.

" Investments, cash and cash equivalents ‘
Surplus cash investmerits are only made with banks with which the Group has an ongoing, long term relationship.
Exposure to credit risk .

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. Therefore, the maximum exposure
to credit risk at the reporting date was the carrylng amount of financial assets. These assets are held as security for the
bank loan as discussed in note 18. .

Credit quality of ﬁnancial assets and impairment losses
The Group has three types of financial assets that are sub_.i.ect to the expected credit loss model:
e . Trade receivables for sales of goods and services
e Other receivables carfied.at amortised cost, and
e  Other financial assets carried at fair value ihréugh profit and loss.

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the lmpalrment requirements of[FRS 9, the identified impairment
loss was immaterial.

None of the Group’s ﬁnancnal assets were impaired. The majority of these ﬁnancnal assets relate to existing
customers/related parties with no past defaults, while cash and cash equivalents are maintained in accounts at large,
reputable financial institutions with robust credit ratings.

25 (c) Liquidity risk
Financial risk management _
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.

" The Group’s approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
cash or facilities to meet its liabilities when du¢, under normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to the Group. The Group’s exposure to liquidity is limited by the fact that.it operates with
sngmﬁcant cash resources and has appropnate access to funding via shareholder loan facilities and maintains headroom -
in its RBL Facility (note 18).

The Group forecasts the expected cash flows that will occur on a weekly and monthly basis. This information is used
in conjunction with the weekly reporting of actual cash balances in order to calculate the level of funding that will be
required in the short and medium term. On a monthly basis, the level of headroom on existing facilities is reported
and forecast forward until the end of the financial period.
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The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments:

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade payables

" Trade payables due to related parties

Other payables
Deferred consideration
Lease liabilities

Amounts due to related parties

~ Non-derivative financial liabilities
 Trade payables

" Trade payables due to related parties
Other payables -
Deferred consideration
Lease liabilities )
Amounts due to related parties

Bank loans

2021
. Contractu -
Carrying al cash  One year “1to<2 2to<5 S years
amount flows ~ orless years years ~ and over
£'000 - £'000 - £'000 £'000 £'000 . £'000
31,198 31,198 31,198 - - -
59 59 ) 59 - - -
16,124 16,124 6,559 - 9,565 .
78,828 78828 78828 - - .
41,962 49,585 '6,237 5,481 16,442 21,425
440,003 670,389 32,435 57,060 142,649 438245
608,174 846,183 155,316 62,541 168,656 459,670
- 2020
Carrying Contractual One year 1to<2 2t0<5 5 yéars
amount cash flows or less . ye’:ars years and over
£'000 £'000 £'0.00 £'000 £'000 £'000
'l7,6i8 17,618 17,618 - - -
820 820 820 - - -
52,262 ’ 52,262 44,114 5,496 ] 2,652 -
98,237 103,633 26,479 77,154 . oo -
27,764 4I,546 5,227 2,173 6,518 27,628
409,231 622,293 32,309 52,769 131,923 - 405,292 A
239,529 © | 267,706 42,177 81,308 144,221 v -
845461  ° 1,105878 - 218,900 285,314 432,920

168,744
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25. Financial mstruments (contmued)
25 (d) Market nsk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as commaodity prices, foreign exchange rates, interest rates
and equity prices will adversely affect the value of the Group’s assets, liabilities or expected future cash flows.

Market risk - Foreign currency risk

The Group operates through cémpanies based in different countries and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to British pound sterling (GBP), Euros (EUR) US Dollars
(USD), Danish krone (DKK).

The majority of the Group’s revenue is generated in GBP, EUR and USD, while the Group’s. operating costs are -
denominated in GBP, USD and DKK. Transactions with other INEOS Group companies are typically denominated in
EUR.and USD. The Group has entered into a number of forelgn currency exchange instruments to limit its foreign
currency transaction exposure.

The foreign currency exposure where the Group’s financial assets/(liabilities) are not denominated in the functional
currency of the operating unit involved is shown below. Foreign exchange differences on retranslation of these assets
and liabilities are taken to the consolldated statement of comprehenswe income.

2021 2020

. £'000 £'000

US Dollars . . (417,754) (516,705)
Euro , : : 14,602 . (197,840)"
' ' (403,152) (714,545)

Sensitivity analysis

A 10% percent weakening of the following currencies against GBP at 31 December would have increased/(decreased)
_the profit/(loss) by the amounts shown below. This calculation assumes that the change occurred at the balance sheet
date and had been applied to risk exposures existing at that date. .

This analysis assumes that all other variables, in partlcular other exchange rates and interest rates remain constant.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for the comparatlve year.

2021 2020
£000 £000
US Dollars ‘ 41,775) . (51,671
Euro ' ' . : 1460 (19:784)

A 10% percent strengthening of the above currencies against the GBP at 31 December would have had the equal but
opposite effect on the above currencies to lhe amounts shown above, on the basis that al] other variables remain
constant. :

. Market risk — Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily
to the Group’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates. At the balance sheet date the interest rate profile
of the Group’s mterest -bearing financial mstruments was:
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- 25 - Financial instruments (continued)

25 (d) Market risk (continued) . .
2021 ‘ - 2020
£'000 ' - £'000

Fixed rate instruments .
Financial liabilities o . © 440,003 409,231

. Variable rate instruments ) ‘ ’ o -
Financial liabilities S - 239,529 .

Sensitivity analysis

An increase of 100 basis points in interest rates would have mcreased/(decreased) the profit/(loss) by the amounts
shown below. This calculation assumes that ‘the change occurred at the balance sheet date and had been applied to risk
exposures existing: at that date. : .

This analysns assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant and considers the
effect of financial instruments with variable interest rates. The analysis is performed on the same basis for comparative
year. '

2021 .- 2020
£000° ~ £'000
" Change in interest rate
. lncrease of 100 basis points . B ) ) - 2,395

A decrease in 100 basis points in interest rates would have had the equal but opposite effect to the amounts shown
above, on the basis that all other variables remain constant. .

Market risk — Commodlty price risk

The main products of the Group are traded commodities exposed to open market prices. The Group is exposed to
fluctuations in market prices to the extent that it has not entered into fixed price-agreements. The Group regularly
reviews the cost- benefit of entering into commodity prlce hedges to minimise risk.

Senszttv:ty analyszs

Movement of oil price would have increased/(decreased) the 'profit/(loss) by the amounts shown below. This analysis
assumes that all other variables remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for the comparative year.

‘ . . - 2021 L 2020
‘ . £'000 - £000
Increase in oil price by 10% ’ . ] , 37,230 A ) 22,842
. - . 0, : ° . .
Decrease in oil price by 10% (37,230) (22,842)

Movement of gas price would have increased/(decreased) the profit/(loss) by the amounts shown below. This analysis
assumes that all other varlables remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for the comparative year.

2021 "2020

. , £'000 £000

Increase in gas price by 10% : : ' 27,208 20,370
Decrease in gas price by 10% (27,208) (20,370)
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25 Financial instruments (contmued)

25 (e) Capital managemem

INEOS UK E&P Holdings:Limited
Annual Report and Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

The Group’s objectlves when managing capital are to safeguard the Group s ablhty to continue as a going concem in
order to provide returns for shareholders and benefi ts for other stakeholders and ‘to maintain an optlmal capital

structure to reduce the cost of capital.

_ Total borrowings
.. Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Net debt
Total equity
Total capital

26 'R‘ight-of-use assets

Cost
At | January 2020

Additions
" Lease modifications
Business disposal (note 4) .
Disposals )
Effect of movements in foreign currency exchange
Balance at 31 December 2020
Additions
_ Acquisitions (note 3) .
Lease modifications-
_ Business disposal (note 4)
‘Effect of movements in foreign currency exchange

Balance at 31 Deceniber 2021

. 2021 2020
£'000 . £'000
440,003 648,760
(89,871) "(130,936)
350,132 517,824
(154,439) (601,841)
195,693 (84,017)
J
Land } Furniture
and Oil'and  Pplaptand and
buildings .Gas  equipment equipment Total
£'000 £000 £1000 £000 £'000
37,582 - 1,154 2,584 41,320
165 - 974 - 1,139
9,643 - - 1,698 - 11,341
(19,904) = - (687)  (20,591)
. - (140) as3)  @93)
1,074 - . 94 1,168
28,560 - 1,988 3,536 34,084
- - 708 - 708
. 18,196 . . 18,196
541 - - 1,164 1,705
1,211 - . - (1,211)
“(1,355) (575) ; (255)  (2,185)
26,535 . 17.621 2,696 4,445 51,297,
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26 Right-of-use assets (continued)

Accumulated depreciation and impairment-

" At | January 2020
Depreciation charge for the year
Business disposal (note 4)
Disposals
Effect of movements in foreign exchange
Balance at 31 December 2020
Depreciation charge for the year
Business disposal (noté 4) '
Effect of movements in foreign exchange

Balance at 31 !)ecember 2021

Net book value
At 31 December 2020
At 31 December 2021

INEOS UK E&P Holdings Limited
Annual Report and Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

(547) (1,286) (5,477)

(3.644) - -
(2,670) - (707) (1,360) 4,737)
2,831 - B 206 3,037
. - 94 . 126 220
(98) - - () (195)
(3,581) - (1,160) 2411) - (7,152)
(1,686) - (750 @2,107) . (4,543)
821 - - . 821
201 . - - 213 414
(4,245) - (1,910) (4,305)  (10,460)
24,979 - . 828 1,125 26,932
22,290 17,621

786 140 40,837

The Group leases a number of assets as part of its activities. This primarily includes its overseas offices, storage tanks
as well as office accommodation and vessel charter. Some leases will have payments that vary with market interest or
inflation rates. The Group’s obligations are secured by the lessors’ title to the leased assets for such leases.

Amount recognised in profit and loss

2021 2020
£'000 £000
Expense relating to short-term leases for which recognition exemption is applied ] 592 116
Expense relating to leases of low value assets for which recognition exemption is applied . - 1
2,001 1,564

Income from subleasing right-of-use assets
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27 Leases liabilities

2021 2020
o ) £'000 -£2000
Analysed as: . C
Non-current ' o : ' 40,944 26,565
Current S ' . o © 1,018 ' l.,l99
C ' ‘ 41,962 27,764
Maturity analysis- contractual unidiscounted cash flows \ A
Less than one year . ] o ' B - 6,237 5,227
One to five years . ) . ' . 21,922 8,691
More than five years . - 21,425 27,628
Total undiscounted lease liabilities at 31 December , 49,584 41,546
Amounts recognised in the statement of cash flows:
Lease capital payments : A - 3,938 3,888
Le.ase interest payments o U . ) 1,251 1,132
Short-term leases C ‘ _ : . 592 116
Leases of low value assets 7 . 9 19
Total cash outflow for leases ' ‘ 5,790 5,155

The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities.

28 Commitments

Capital commitments A _ S .

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had" capital commitments contracted but not provided for of £6.0 million. (2020:
£41.8 million). ) T

29 Contingencies

Cqmingent asset

As part of the sales and purchase agreements over interests in the Darwin field, the Group is entitled to a contingent
consideration should a Field Development Plan be submitted and approved by the regulator within 7 years of the

Completion Date. The total value of contingent assets are £1.7 million, which have not been recognised because it is
" contingent on future events, which are not under the control of the Group (2020: £1.7 million).

As part of the sales and purchasé agreement in note 3, the Group is entitled to receive a contingent consideration of

* DKK 607.0 million (£68.5 million) if a decision is made to not invest on Hejre and Solsort discoveries. The contingent
asset has not been recognised because they are contingent on future events which have a high level of uncertainty at
the year end. .
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.29 Contingencies (céntinued) '

Contingent liabilities

As surety with primary liability, @rsted A/S has provided a guarantee for the Group’s subsidiary, INEOS E&P
Grenland A/S, obligations and liabilities under a Greenlandic licence. The guarantee is not capped. If @rsted A/S is
held liable under the guarantee then the Group shall indemnify @rsted A/S for such liability. -

The Group is subject to a continger:nt consideration of US$ 60.0 million (£44.5 million) should a Final [nvestment
Decision be made on Hejre and Solsort discoveries with notice issued to the regulator. The contingent liability has not
been recognised because it is contingent on future events which are considered remote.

.30 Related parties

The Group has transactions with various other companies within the lNEOS Group The prmmpal related party
relationships being:

Net
Purchase
of Interest. Interest Receivables’ Payables Borrowings .
Revenue Services income expense outstanding outstanding outstanding
2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 ) 2021
£'000 £000  £000  £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
INEOS. Offshore ) ' - - 289 28,943 10,293 - 438,245
BCS Limited )
Other INEOS . 362,614 (8,578) 7,974 - 249,485 59 1,758
group entities . : .
362,614 (8,578) 8,263 28,943 259,778 .59 440,003
Net
Purchase . :
) . of Interest  Interest Receivables Payables Borrowings
Revenue Services income  expense outstanding outstanding outstanding
2020* 2020 2020 2020* - 2020* 2020* 2020*
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 4 £'000
INEOS Offshore ~ ~ - - 298 29,101 - - 405292
BCS Limited :
Other INEOS . 87,486 45,710 . 4,367 870 " 45,637 820 - 3,939
group entities : ) )
87,486 . 45710 4,665 - 29971 45,637 820 409,231

*2020 disclosures are reclassified to disclose comparative discontinued operations results separately.

All revenues were made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates. Purchase of services include
cost recharge, management fees and other services provided by INEOS group companies and were made on normal
commercial terms and conditions. For borrowings from related parties please refer to note 18 for details. All
outstanding balances are unsecured and are repayable in cash
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30 Related parties (continued)
Transactions with key management personnel-

The Group defines key management as the directors of the Company. Details of dnrectors remuneranon is given
below:

2021 . 2020

£'000 ) £'000

'Remuneration o . ' 1,117 1,463

'Comi)ensation in relation to loss of office ' : 891 591

Company contributions to money purchase pension plans o 8 . 60

2,016 2,114

Highest paid director :

. 2021 2020

£'000 £'000

Remuneration : 751 324

Compensation in relation to loss of office : . ] 891 591
Company contributions to .money purchase pension plans R 17

1642 932

31 Ultimate parent company and parent company of |arger group

The Group's immediate parent is INEOS Offshore BCS Limited. The ultlmate parent is INEOS lelted a company
- incorporated in the Isle of Man

- The most 'senior parent entity producing publicly available financial statements, and the smallest and largest group to
consolidate these financial statements is INEOS Industries Limited. These financial statements are available upon
request from Hawkslease, Chapel Lane, Lyndhurst, Hampshire, SO43 7FG, Umted Kingdom or from Companies'

) House The ultimate controlling party is Mr J A Ratcliffe. -
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32 Subsequent events

On 26th May 2022, the Chancellor of the Exchequer, announced a new tax for Upstream Oil & Gas Companies, an
Energy Profits Levy, of an additional 25% tax on UK oil & gas profits. The tax will take effect for profits arising on
and after 26 May 2022. The Government has stated that this is a temporary measure that is expected to be phased out
no later than 31. December 2025. This has no impact on the current financial period.

The Group continues to momtor the ongoing military actions in Ukraine and continued impact of the COVID-19
pandemic that may disrupt or curtail its operations or development activities. The Group is actively monitoring any
factors and events that could adversely affect the Group and mitigating measures are implemented where appropriate.

88



‘Company’s Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2021

Non-current assets

Intangible assets :

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

[nvestments .

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Trade and other receivables

Indemnification assets .

Current assets
_Trade'and other receivables
Cash and bank balances

Total assets

Current liabilities
Trade and-other payables
Loans and borrowings
" Derivatives financial instruments
Deferred consideration
Lease liabilities

Net current (liabilities)/assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables
L:oans and borrowings . -
. Deferred consideration
Provisions

Lease liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets/(liabilitieS)

‘ Note

10
16
I
12

1

13 ..

14
15
16
17 -

19

14

.15

17
I8
19

INEOS UK E&P Holdings Limited
Annual Report and Financial Statements

* for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

31 Decembér 31 December
2021 2020
£000 -£000

105 165
408 496
155 . 246
1,293,419 938473
29,875 . ;

- 88,536
325,445 ©.'204,050
1,649,407 1,231,966
539,120 406,996
89,813 120,344
628,933 527,340
2,278,340 © 1,759,306
(10,023) - (12,662)
(661,008) (453,656)
(257,409) (2,547)

(74,195) (11,022)
(84) 93)
C(1,002,719) - (479,980)
(373,786) 47,360
1,275,621 1,279,326
(2,489) | (2,652)
(1,095,024)  (1,306,169)
- (71,758)
(79) . (80)
(95) : (156)
(1,097,687 (1,380,815)
(2,100,406) (1,860,795)

177,934 - (101,489)
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' Cdmpany’s Balance Sheet as at 31 Deéembér 2021 (continued).

. - : _ o .31 December:‘ 31 December
' , 2021 ‘ 2020
Note . £000 : £000

Equity
Share.capital ’ 20 74,327 . 74,327
Share premium : ‘ ) ' Tt 232,994 232,994
_Capital redemption reserve ' ' Co : 22,547 22,547
_Other reserves o - ' . ‘ 4,875 -
Retained deficit . o : - (156,809) . (431,357
Equity attributable to owners of the Compa.ny : ' I77,934 ~(101,489)

The financial staﬁeménfs_ on pages 88 to 107. were approved by the Board on 30 june 2022 and signed on its behalf by: A

G Ut~

Michael Llewellyn

Director
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At | January 2021
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

- Total comprehensive income

At 31 December 2021

At | January 2020
Profit for the yéar

Total comprehensive income
New share capital subscribed

At 31 December 2020

INEOS UK E&P Holdings Limited
Annual Report and Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31.December 2021

" .Company’s Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Capital .

Sﬁar;e redemption Retz;ined . :
Share capital  premium reserve  Other reserves deficit Total equity
£ 000 £000 - £000 £000 £ 000 £ 000
74,327 232,994 22,547 - (431,357) (101,489) .
- - - - 274,548 274,548
- - - 4,875 - 4,875
- - - 4,875 274,548 279,423
74,327 232,994 22,547 4,875 (1:36,809) 177,934
. Capital
. Share redemption Retained : .
Share capital  premium reserve - Other reserves deficit Total equity -
£000 - £000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000,
74,327 173,683 22,547 . (487,154) (216,597)
- - - -. 55,797 55,797
- - - - 355,797 55,797
- 59,311 - - : - 59,311
74,327 232,994 22,547 . - (431,357) (101,489)
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Notes to the Company’s Financiai Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

1  Accounting policies

Summary of significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates
The accountmg policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied conSIStently to all periods presented
in these financial statements. : .

Basis of preparation _
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced
Disclosure Framework (“FRS 101”) and in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except that the following assets and liabilities are
stated at their fair value: derivative financial instruments, financial instruments classified as fair value through profit
or loss or as fair value through other comprehensive income. Non-current assets are stated at the lower of previous
_carrying amount and fair value less costs'to sell. B
The Company’s financial statements are presented in British pound sterling (£), which is also the Company’s
functional currency. All the amounts in the financial statements unless stated have been rounded to the nearest
. £°000. .

No income statement is dlSC]OSCd by the Company as allowed by Section 408 of the Compames Act 2006.

Details of dividends paid by the Company are disclosed in the Directors' report of the consolldated financial
statements.

Where required, equivalent disclosures are given in the consolidated financial statements. The principal accounting
policies are the same as those disclosed in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements except as noted below.

Investments in jointly controlled entities, associates and subsidiaries are recorded as cost, which is the fair value of
the consideration paid, less accumulated impairment losses. - :

Changes in significant accounting policies
Adoption for new and revised standards for 2021

The Combany has adopted the following amendments to accounting standards for the first time in 2021 with effect
from 1 January 2021, although none have had a material effect on the Company's financial statements in the year
unless otherwise indicated:

+ Amendment to IFRS 16- COVID-19- Related Rent Concessions - beyond 30 June 2021 (effective date 1 April
2021). The amendment introduces an optional practical expedient that snmphf‘es how a lessee accounts for rent
concessions that are a direct consequence of COVID-19;

*+ Amendments to lFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7 and IFRS 16: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 has been.
adopted and has been applied retrospectively. The amendments introduce a practical expedient relating to
modifications of financial instruments and lease contracts and specific hedge accounting requirements which is
triggered by, a replacement of a benchmark interest rate in a contract with a new alternative benchmark rate. -
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Accounting policies’(cbntinued) *

Accounting standards not applied

A number of new stahdards and amendments are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 January 2022 and
earlier application is permitted; however, the Company has not early adopted the new or amended standards in
preparing these financial statements. The impact of their adoption is being assessed and is not expected to have a

-material impact on'the Company's’ ﬁnancral statements in the period of initial appllcatlon The new standards and

amendments are as follows:

Amendments to [AS 37: Onerous Contracts-Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (effective date 1 January 2022).
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in [FRS 3 (effective date | January 2022).

Amendments to 1AS 16: Property Plant and Equipment- -Proceeds before Intended Use (effectlve date 1 January
2022). . .

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 (effectlve date 1 January 2022)
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (effective date'| January 2023).

Amendments to [AS 12: Intome taxes-deferred tax related to assets and Ilabllltles arising from a smgle transactlon
(effective date | January 2023).

Amendments to IAS | Presentation of Financial Statements: CIassnFcatlon of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

(effective date | January 2023).

‘Amendments to 1AS 1 Presentatlon of Financial Statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2: Disclosure of
~ Accounting Policies (effective date | January 2023). ~

Amendments to IAS 8: Definition of.Accountmg Estimates (effective date 1 January 2023).
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

Summary of disclosure exemptions
In these financial statements, the Company has applled the exemptions available under FRS 101. in respect of the

. following disclosures:

«  “Paragraph 91 to 99 of IFRS 13, 'Fair value measurement (dlsclosure of valuation technlques and mputs used
for fair value measurement of assets and liabilities).
. Paragraph 38 of IAS 1, ‘Presentation of financial statements comparative mformatnon requlrements in respect
of: - :
L. paragraph 79(a)(iv) of lAS I;
I1. paragraph 73(e)-of IAS 16 Property, plant.and equipment; :
I11. paragraph 118(e) of IAS 38 Intangible assets (reconcnllatlon between the canymg amount at the
beginning and end of the period).
. The following paragraphs of IAS 1, ‘Presentation of financial statements’:
- 10(d), (statement of cash flows)
- 16 (statement ofcompllance with all IFRS), :
- 38A (requirement for minimum of two primary statements, including cash ﬂow statements),
- 38B-D (additional comparative information),
- 111 (cash flow statement information), and
- 134-136 (capital management disclosures).
. IAS 7, ‘Statement of cash flows’.
. Paragraph 30 and 31 of IAS 8 Accountmg policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors’.
. Paragraph 17 of IAS 24, ‘Related party disclosures’ (key management compensation).
. requirements in [AS 24, ‘Related party disclosures’ to disclose related party transactions entered into between
two or more members of a group.
*  Therequirements of paragraph 52 the second sentence of paragraph 89, and paragraphs 90, 91 and 93 of IFRS
16 'Leases'.
. The requirements of paragraph 58 of [FRS 16 'Leases’

2 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The Company prepares its financial statements in accordance with FRS 101, which requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions which affect the application of accounting policies, and the reported amount
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accountlng estimates are recognised in the period in which
. the estimates change and in ‘any future periods.
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2 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of investments :

An impairment test requires an assessment as to whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by its
recoverable amount. Management calculates the recoverable amount based on the net present value of future cash
flows derived from the relevant assets, using cash flow projections which have been discounted at an appropriate

discount rate. Estimations of the future cash flows require application of judgements and actual cash flows can differ .

from the estimate due to changes in assumptions.

The Company has assessed the carrying value of investments in subsidiaries and has identified the need fora
provision reversal of £376.8 million; £342.3 million in respect of the investment in INEOS UK SNS Limited, a
reversal of £34.5million in respect of the investment in INEOS E&P (UK) Limited and £6.7 million reversal in -
respect of the investment in INEOS Clipper South C Limited (2020: provision charge of £34.5 million recognised in
respect of the investment in INEOS E&P (UK) Limited).

Provisions

Provisions are recognised for the cost of dilapidation and festoration 'work where there is a legal or constructive
obligation for such work to be carried out. The nature and amount of provisions lncluded in the financial statements
are detalled in note 18.

Expected loss allowance on amounts owed by group undertakings

The Company applies the simplified approach when providing for expected credit losses: prescribed by [FRS 9 for its
trade debtors. Under the simplified approach, an expected credit loss is recognised for all possible default events over
the expected life of the trade debtors.

3 Auditor's remuneration .
2021 2020

£ 000 £000
Audit of the financial statements . : 25 é4
4  Staff costs

The aggregate payroll costs (including 'Directers’ remuneration) were as follows: _

‘ ' ' 2021 2020

' £.000 £000

Wages and salaries - ) 6,724 8,865

Social security costs : ' : . 1,197 ' 1,491

Pension costs, defined contribution scheme ' . I 948

' 8,693 11,304
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4  Staff costs (continued)

The average number of persons-employed by the Company (including dlrectors) during the year, analysed by category
-was as follows:

S 2021 © 2020
N ' No. . No.
.Production ' ! ' A 39 38
- Administration and support : _ 26 ° 2 31
Research and development . ) ‘ ) 16 25
: 81 ' 94
,/
5 Directors' remuneration
The dlrectors remuneration for the year was as follows:
‘ . 2021 f 2020
) ) £000 ~£000 -
Remuneration ) : ‘ ) l,l 17 1,463
Compensation in respect of loss of office - ‘ 891 591
Pension contributions - ‘ 8 : 60
' 2,016 2,114

During the year the number of directors who were receiving benefits and share incentives was as follows:

~2021 : 2020

No. No.

Accruing benefits under money purchase pensionscheme . . L 1 - -4
In réspect of the highest paid director: , )

‘ 2021 2020

) ) ) £ 000 . £000

Remuneration : R ' 751 324

Comipensation in relation to loss of office ‘ o 891 591

Company contributions to money nurchase pension schemes - ‘ - 17

1,642 : 932
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6 . T.ax

Tax credit in the income statement

2021 : 2020
£ 000 £000

Current taxation
UK corporation tax R : (57,342) . (18,898)
.UK corporation tax adjustment to prior periods ) ’ ) (1) 14
' - ‘ ©(57453) . (18,884)

The tax on profit before tax for the year is the same as the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK (2020: the same
as the standard rate of corporation.tax in the UK) of 19% (2020: 19%). '

The differences are reconciled-below: A
2021 2020

£000 " £000
Profit before tax 217,095 36913
Corporation tax at standard rate 41,248 . 7,013
(Decrease)/increase in current tax from adjustment for prior periods ) . (i 14
Increase from effect of capital. allowances depreciation " | 2

. : : N

Increase from effect of different-UK tax rates on some earnings o -
Decrease from effect of expenses not deductible in determining tax loss . (98,590) - ©(25,916)
(Decrease)/increase from tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was .
recognised o . : 2) . 3
Total tax credit . ' ' (57,453) . (18,884)

Changes to the UK corporation tax rates were enacted as part of Finance Act 2016. In the 2021 Budget, the
Government announced that the main rate of corporation tax will increase to 25% from 1 April 2023. Given that the
Company is not providing any deferred tax at that rate this change will not have any impact on the recorded tax
position. - ) : ’ :

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised as the directors consider there is insufficient certainty over the future
utilisation of deductible temporary differences of £1,539,000 (2020: £744,000).
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7 Intangible assets

Software
£000
Cost _ . .
At | January 2021 o : B 2,344
Disposals . ‘ : (13)
At31 December 2021 o - 1
" Accumulated amortisation and impairment .
At | January 2021 . , - 2,179
Amortisatiqn charge . ‘ 47
At 31 December 2021 : o o o : 2,226
Carrying amount .
At 31 December 2021 : ' 105
At 31 December 2020 . - - ' - : ’ R ) ) 165
8 Property plant and equipment
X Furniture,
fittings and
equipment
£ 000
Cost )
At | January 2021 : ' 1,573
Additions ‘ : . 87 -
Disposals : ) : 3hH
At 31 December 2021 ’ ] . 1,629
Depreciation ) ' . . .
At 1 January 2021 ) L : . 1,077
Charge for the year ' _ ; ' . <175
Eliminated on disposal ' : _ ' (€10
At 31 December 2021 _ ' ' ' 1,221
Carrying amount ) » ) .
At 31 December 2021 ’ . ) ' . ' : 408
At 31 December 2020 ' ) . : . 496
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i .

9 ' Right-of-use assets - '

Property

' £000
Cost . _ .
At | January 2021 ' ‘ : : ‘ 375
At31 December2021 . | L R v~
Depreciation : .
At | January 2021 . , _ 129
Charge for the year - : » : : - 91
At:31 December 2021 ' T o - 220
Carryihg amount . v _ » .
At31 December 2021 - o ' - 155
At 31.December 2020 : . - ‘ : . 246
10 Investments ‘ ’ o ,
Subsidiaries ' . ’ , . £ 000
"Cost ' “ .
Atl January-2021 : ' . ) : ) " 1,329,381
Reduction : ' (21,854)
At 31 December 2021 ‘ o - 1,307,527
Impairment provision . . ' »
At | January 2021 : L : : . 390,908
Impairment reversal o . o . (376,800)
At 31 December 2021 R , o 14,108
Carrying amount ] . ) '
At 31 December 2021 ‘ - ' a 1,203,419

At 31 December 2020 g . o 938,473
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- 10 lnvestments (continued)

In the current yéar, the Company's sub51d|ary INEOS Norge AS completed a share capital reduction with the
proceeds being returned to the Company and the value of the investment held by the Company being reduced.

" An impairment test was performed on the carrying value of the investments. As a result of higher gas price
environment compared-to 2020, the net present value of investments has increased and an impairment reversal of
£376.8 million was recognised in the income statement (2020: impairment charge of £34.5 million). The discount
rate used in measuring value.in use was 8.04% (2020: 8.66%). .

Dc?taills of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021 are as follows:

Proportion of
ownership
interest and
voting rights’

Name of subsidiary " Principal activity Registered office : held
: . ) 2021 2020
INEOS Clipper Soulh B Exploration, development  Anchor House, 15-19 Britten Street, 100% 100%
'lelled and production of gas London, SW3 3TY )
) United Kingdom
INEOS Clipper South C Exploration, development  Anchor House, 15-19 Britten Street, 100% 100%

Limited and production of gas London, SW3 3TY
' | United Kingdom-
INEOS UK 4SNS Limited’ Exploration, developmeni Anchor House, 15-19 Britten Street, 100% . 100%
' and production of gas London, SW3 3TY : '
A United Kingdom -

INEOS E&P Norg A/S Exploration, development  Rafnes 3966 Stathelle Vestfold OG 100% ’ 100%
' and production of oiland  Telemark
gas - A Norway
JN"EOS E&P (Petroleum Development of oil and gas Teknikerbyen 5, 1., 2830 Virum 100% 100%
_Denmark) ApS- : around the North Sea
* Denmark
INEQOS E&P A/S. Explore and develop Teknikerbyen 5, 1, 2830 Virum 100% - 100%
. N hydrocarbons in Denmark Denmark - '
" and around the North Sea camark .
INEOS E&P (Norge) Development of oil and gas Veritasveien 25, 4007 Stavanger 100% “. 100%
Petroleum DK AS around the North Sea Norway
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10 Investments (continued)

Name of subsidiary

INEOS E&P DK A/S

N

INEOS E&P Feroyar P/F

INEOS Gronland E&P A/S

INEOS E&P (Siri) UK
Limited

INEOS E&P (UK) Limited

INEOS E&P Services (UK)
" Liniited

INEOS Energy (Syde Ame)
ApS : .

Principal activity

Explore and develop
hydrocarbons as well as
ancillary activities.

Explore and dé\(elop
hydrocarbons and related

‘activities in the Faroe

Islands

Explore and develop
hydrocarbons and related
activities in Greenland

‘Oil and gas exploration,
development and

production within
Denmark.

" Oil and gas exploration,

development and
production within the UK

Service provider to other
group companies

N

- Oil and gas exploration, -

development and
production- within
Denmark.

Registered office

Teknikerbyen 5, 1, 2830 V_irhm,

Denmark
Denmark ~

J.H. Schreters Gota 7,100
Torshavn

Faroe Islands

Advdkatﬁrmaet Malling & Hansen

Damm, Hans Egedesvej 3.
Postboks 1046. 3900 Nuuk

Greenland

.Ahchor, House, 15-19 Britten

Street, Lo'ndqn, SW33TY
United Kingdom

Anchor House, 15-19 Britten
Street, London, SW3 3TY

United Kingdom

Anchor House, 15-19 Britten’

Slrt;et, London, SW3 3TY
United Kingdom

Teknikerbyen 5, 1., 2830 Virum, ~

Denmark

Denmark

. Proportion of
ownership
interest and
voting rights

held

2021 2020

100% 100%

0% - 100% | ;
100% 100%,

100% 100%
100% 100%

100% 100%

100% 0%
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11 Trade and other receivables

2021 ) - 2020

, £000 . £000

Trade receivable - . : . ' 10 R 7

Amount owed by group undertakmgs . 460,398 . 474,657

- Prepayments , - ’ 4 580 647

Other receivable o : _ 78,132 20,221
/o ' . R 539,120, -+ 495532

Less non-current portion ' . - . - (88,536)
Total current trade and other reéei\'/ab[e . . ‘ 539;]20 : 406,996 .

Details of non-current trade and other receivable )
£Nil (2020: £88.5 million) of amounts owed by group undertakings is classified as non-current.

The Company has loan arrangements with its subsidiaries. The loans bear interest of a range of 3.5% - 7% and the
interest-is payable ona quarterly basis. The full amount is unsecured. '

The Company also has internal cash accounts with its subsndlanes They are due on demand and bear interest at -
LIBOR plus a margm ofO 5% (2020: 0. 5%) -

Trade receivables

As at 31 December 2021, none of the trade receivables were past due (2020: nil). All trade and other receivables are
deemed as low risk and collectible on the basis of established credit management processes such as regular analysis
of the credit worthiness of our customers and external credit checks where appropriate for new customers. At 31
December 2021 and 2020, there were no S|gmﬁcant tiade or other receivables balances not past due that were
-subsequently impaired. -

12 Indemnification assets . '
2021 : 2020

£ 000 © £000
At 31 December 2021 _ 4 325445 204,050

As part of the acquisition of DONG E&P A/S in 2017, the Company benefits from an indemnity in respect of uncertain
tax liabilities relating to pre-acquisition periods. The Company also benefits from a contractual right to receive
sufficient cash to fulfil the obligation to settle actual payments-in respect of the historical construction cost of the
Fredericia Gas Plant, regardless of amount and timing. These mdemmﬁcatlon assets were valued at £325.4 million as
at31 December 2021 (2020 £204.1 million).
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13 Cash and bank balances

Cash at bank

14 Trade and other payables

Trade payables
Accrued expenses

~ Amounts owed to group u‘nder’takings :

Social security and other taxes
Other payables.

Non-Current
Other payables

15 Loans and borrowings

Non-current loans and borrowings
Bank borrowings

Amounts owed to group undenakings )

Current loans and borrowings
Bank borrowings

Amounts owed to group undertakings

2021 2020

£000 £000
89,813 120344 -

2021 2020

£ 000 £000

5,963 2,962

2,687 3,028

27 475

- 107

1,346 6,090

10,023 12,662

2,489 2,652

2021 2020

£000 £000

- 214,574

1,095,024 1,091,595

1,095,024 1,306,169

2021 12020

£ 000 £000

- 24.955

661,008 428,701

661,008 453,656
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15 Loans and bqrroWings (continued)

Other borrowings .
Amounts owed to group undertakings
The Company has a loan arrangement with'its parent INEOS Offshore BCS Limited. The loans amount to US$591.5
million (£438.2 million) bears interest of 7% and the interest is payable on a quarterly basis. INEOS Offshore BCS
Limited has indicated no repayment will be demanded for at least 12 months from the approval of financial

. Statements.

-The Company has a loan arrangement w1th INEOS E&P A/S. The loan amounts to DKK 5,817 million (£656 8
million) bears an average interest of 2.88% for the year ended 31 December 2021. The interest is payable on a
quarterly basis. INEOS E&P A/S has mdlcated no repayment will be demanded for at least 12 months.from the -
approval of financial statements.

. Amounts owed to group undertakings also include a balance of £661.0 million (2020: £428.7 million) that represents
internal cash accounts with its subsi_dia'riés. They are due on demand and bear interest at variable rates.

Bank Borrowings :

RBL Facility is secured on customary terms and bears interest at a margin above risk free rates. The Company’s
subsidiaries are the guarantors to the RBL Facility. In October 2021, the Company repaid the outstanding balance of
the RBL Facility in full, leaving £nil liability as at 31. December 2021.

‘16 Financial instruments . :
’ © 2021 2020

. £000 £ 000
Derivative liabilities held for risk management (257,409) (2,547)
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehenswe income - ) 29,875 ' -
Net liabilities ) (227,534) (2,547)

The Company has entered into foreign currency forward contracts to limit its foreign currency transaction exposure.

On 30 July 2021, the Group purchased 25 million shares of £1 each in HydrogenOne Capital Growth plc for a total
consideration of £25 million. For invéstments in equity securities that are not held for trading, the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes to fair value in other comprehensive income. The Group makes this '
election on an investment-by-investment basis. When these investments are derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised directly in equity is recognised in the income statement.
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‘17 Deferred consideration

2021

. ) . £000

Atllanuary2021 . - - T o 82,780
Consideration settled during the year . ) (I0,9405
Increase due to unwinding of discount o " o , . . C - 1,798
Effect of movements in foreign exchange - , 4 o 3 557
At 31" December 2021 S . ' , L - 74,195
Current . _ ’ o g . . - 74,195

. . . - \
Deferred consideration relates to the obligation of the Company to pay $150.0 million (£111.6 million) in instalments
in connection with the capital cost of the Fredericia Gas Plant as part of acquisition of DONG E&P A/S in 2017. In®
2021, US$15.0 million (£11.0 million) was paid (US$45.0 million (£33.3 million) paid inception to date). The fair
value of the remaining consideration is $105.0 million (£74.2 million) at 31 Dgcembef 2021.

18 Provisions for liabilities
- 1

Dilapidation and

restoration .
provisions
, i . £000
At | January 2021 . : o : ) / ’ : : 80
Decrease in existing provisions - _ ) ’ i ‘ o (1)
- At31 December 2021 o o o 79
Non-current li.abivlities ' C . _ o 79

D:/aptdat:on and restoration provisions :

The Company has provided for restoration costs in relatlon to a leased property. The Company has an obligation to
return the property at the end of the lease to its original state. The restoration is expected to occur when the lease
expnres in 2025.
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19 Leases liabilities

Leases liabilities

2021 2020 .
. . £000 £000
Current pomon oflong term lease liabilities - . . 84 ) 93
Long term lease liabilities ) S . 95 ’ 156

Lease liabilities maturity analysis
A maturlty analysrs of lease liabilities based on undiscounted gross cash flow is- reported in the table below:

2021 2020
. - £000 £ 000
On demand or within one year R ' 88 100
- Between one and five years : : . 98 156"
Total lease liabilitiés (undiscounted) . ' 186 256
20 Share capital
" Allotted, called up and fully paid shores . .
: 31 December . 31 December
2021 - ' . 12020
- ’ ‘ No. 000 £ 000 - No. 000 £ 000
Ordinary Shares of£l each | ] 74,327 - 74,327 74327 = 74,327

fn 2020 an additional share was awarded to INEOS Offshore BCS Limited, the immediate parent, as part of an internal
organisational restructuring. The share was issued at a value of £1 plus a premium of £59.3 million.

21. Pension and other schemes

- Defined contribution pension scheme

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The pension cost charged for the year represents
contributions payable by the Company to the schenie and amounted to £772,477 (2020: £947,450). :
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22 Related party transactions

During the year the Company entered into transactions, in the ordinary courses of business, with related parties.
The nature and terms of the transactions have been disclosed in notes 10, 11 and 15. The Company has also
taken advantage of the exemption under paragraph 8 of Financial Reporting Standard 101 not to disclose
transactions with the fellow subsidiaries under common ownership.

23 PRarent and ultimate parent undertaking
* The company's immediate parent is INEOS Offshore BCS Limited.
The ultimate parent is INEOS Limited, a company incorporated in the Isle of Man. '

The most senior parent entity producing publiély available financial statements, and the smallest and largest
group to consolidate these financial statements is INEOS Industries Limited. These financial statéments are
available upon request from Hawkslease, Chapel Lane, Lyndhurst, Hampshire, SO43 7FG, United Kingdom.

The ultimate controlling party is Mr J A Ratcliffe.
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